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Mental Health Commission
MHSA-Finance Committee Meeting
Wednesday, July 15, 2020, 3:00-4:30 PM
Via: Zoom Teleconference:
https://cchealth.zoom.us/j/6094136195
Meeting number: 609 413 6195
Join by phone:
1 646 518 9805 US
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AGENDA
I.
II.

Call to order/Introductions
Public comments

III.

Commissioner comments

IV.

APPROVE minutes from June 18, 2020 Quality of Care/MHSA-Finance joint
meeting

V.

DISCUSS MHSA Program and Fiscal Reviews’ reports with:
A. Roger Daniels or Kimberly Powers of Fred Finch Youth Center Full
Service Partnership program.
B. Kanwarpal Dhaliwal of RYSE Center Youth programs.
C. Carol Carrillo of Child Abuse Prevention Council (CAPC) the Nurturing
Parent program.

VI.
VII.

Announcement Preparation August for August 19 or 20, 2020 Committee
meeting.
Adjourn

In accordance with the Brown Act, if a member of the public addresses an item not on the agenda, no response, discussion or action
on the item may occur. In the interest of time and equal opportunity, speakers are requested to observe a 3-minute time limit.
If special accommodations are required to attend any meeting, due to a disability, please contact the Executive Assistant of the Mental
Health Commission, at: (925) 957-2619
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Mental Health Services Act (MHSA)
Program and Fiscal Review

I.

Date of On-site Review: November 8, 2017
Date of Exit Meeting:
January 29, 2018

II.

Review Team:

III.

Name of Program:

IV.

Program Description.
Fred Finch Youth Center (Fred Finch) seeks to provide innovative, effective,
caring mental health and social services to children, young adults, and their
families that allow them to build on their strengths, overcome challenges, and live
healthy and productive lives. Fred Finch serves children, adolescents, young
adults, and families facing complex life challenges. Many have experienced
trauma and abuse; live at or below the poverty line; have been institutionalized or
incarcerated; have a family member that has been involved in the criminal justice
system; have a history of substance abuse; or have experienced discrimination
or stigma. Fred Finch Youth Center is the lead agency that collaborates with the
Contra Costa Youth Continuum of Services, The Latina Center, and Contra
Costa Behavioral Health Services to provide a full service partnership program
for transition age youth in West and Central Contra Costa County.

V.

Purpose of Review.
Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services (CCBHS) is
committed to evaluating the effective use of funds provided by the Mental Health
Services Act (MHSA). Toward this end a comprehensive program and fiscal
review was conducted of Fred Finch Youth Center’s Full Service Partnership
Program (FSP). The results of this review are contained herein, and will assist in
a) improving the services and supports that are provided; b) more efficiently
support the County’s MHSA Three Year Program and Expenditure Plan; and c)
ensure compliance with statute, regulations and policy. In the spirit of continually
working toward better services we most appreciate this opportunity to collaborate

Stephanie Chenard, Jennifer Bruggeman, Windy Taylor,
Robin O’Neill, Chad Pierce
Fred Finch Youth Center –
(CCTAY Full Service Partnership)
2523 El Portal Drive, Suite 201
San Pablo, CA 94806
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together with the staff and clients participating in this program in order to review
past and current efforts, and plan for the future.
VI.

Summary of Findings. The review covered 18 topics related to MHSA
guidelines, quality programming and fiscal responsibility.
Topic
1. Deliver services according to
the values of the MHSA

Met
Standard
Met

Notes
Consumers and family
members indicate the program
meets the values of MHSA

2. Serve the agreed upon target
population.

Met

Program only serves clients
that meet criteria for the
County’s full service partnership
admission criteria.

3. Provide the services for which
funding was allocated.

Met

MHSA only funds services
consistent with the Three Year
Plan

4. Meet the needs of the
community and/or population.

Met

Services are consistent with the
Three Year Plan

5. Serve the number of
individuals that have been
agreed upon.

Partially
Met

Program is close to their target
number range, but should work
on being fully staffed, and
strengthen referral
relationships.

6. Achieve the outcomes that
have been agreed upon.
7. Quality Assurance

Met

Program meets its outcomes

Met

Utilization review indicated
program meets quality
assurance standards.

8. Ensure protection of
confidentiality of protected
health information.
9. Staffing sufficient for the
program

Met

The program is HIPAA
compliant

10. Annual independent fiscal
audit

Partially
Met

Met

Current staffing provides full
services, but cannot meet their
target number of consumers at
current staffing levels.
No material or significant
weaknesses were noted.
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VII.

11. Fiscal resources sufficient to
deliver and sustain the
services
12. Oversight sufficient to comply
with generally accepted
accounting principles

Met

Fred Finch has significant net
assets to withstand significant
revenue interruptions.

Met

13. Documentation sufficient to
support invoices

Met

Staff is well qualified and
program has good internal
controls and monthly review
processes.
Organization provided
documentation that reconciles
to monthly invoices.

14. Documentation sufficient to
support allowable
expenditures
15. Documentation sufficient to
support expenditures invoiced
in appropriate fiscal year

Met

Method of accounting for
personnel time and operating
costs appear to be supported.

Met

No billings noted for previous
fiscal year expenses and
documentation supports that
funds are invoiced in the
appropriate fiscal year.

16. Administrative costs
sufficiently justified and
appropriate to the total cost of
the program
17. Insurance policies sufficient to
comply with contract
18. Effective communication
between contract manager
and contractor

Met

Contract budget reflects
appropriate indirect rate.

Met

Necessary insurance is in place

Partially
Met

The County and program meet
semi-regularly.

Review Results.

The review covered the following areas:

1. Deliver services according to the values of the Mental Health Services Act
(California Code of Regulations Section 3320 – MHSA General Standards).
Does the program collaborate with the community, provide an integrated service
experience, promote wellness, recovery and resilience, be culturally competent,
and be client and family driven.
Method. Consumer, family member and service provider interviews and
consumer surveys.
Discussion. Interviews were conducted with six consumer/family members (four
youth program participants, two family members), seven line staff (three Personal
Service Coordinators, one Peer Specialist, one Community Support Worker, one
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Employment Specialist, and one Family Partner), and four program management
staff (Northern California Regional Vice President, Senior Director, Program
Director, and Clinical Supervisor).
Consumer Interview/Surveys:
A 12-question survey was given to clients. The first seven questions addressed
the MHSA general standards and the remaining five questions asked about the
overall quality and importance of the program. Surveys were received from three
program participants. The majority of the survey responses were consistent with
consumer interviews; namely, they show a positive evaluation of the program;
and that the program adheres to MHSA values.
Surveys and interviews indicated the program does well in the following areas:
 The program staff make the participants feel very well supported
 Flexibility – able to provide services in the community
 The family partner provides peer support and advocacy to family members
 The program has been very key in helping families to learn more about
mental illness and get support in crisis
 The program has bi-lingual staff to assist Spanish-speaking consumers
and families
 Job preparation and support is vital to recovery
 Groups and activities are very helpful in building social skills, and reduce
isolation.
 The Youth Advisory Council enables the participants to identify needs of
the participants, and provides them with opportunities for leadership
These positives clearly speak to several of the MHSA values. When compared
to the last Program Review conducted in March of 2014, these positives show
that the program is continuing many of its established strengths (bi-lingual
capacity, Youth Advisory Council, and services in the community), in addition to
new aspects (job preparation). The consumers expressed that overall they were
very happy with the program; however, they also identified areas of
improvement: some consumers noticed that staff often appear to be overstressed, and one consumer expressed a desire to see more male staff
members.
Staff Interview:
Overall, 11 individual program staff were interviewed in two sessions: a program
management session and a line staff group interview. Staff shared that the
program receives their referrals primarily from the West County Adult Clinic, with
4

additional referrals from Seneca, Catalyst Academy, self-referrals, community
engagement, and word of mouth. Fred Finch staff provide care as a team and
offer case management, referrals to community resources, social and life skills
training, job preparation, and housing supports. Program staff reported spending
much of their time working with their clients through daily challenges, such as
reducing their isolation and re-integrating them into the community, providing
ongoing support to increase independent livings skills, and engaging families
when possible. Moreover, program staff reported some of the strengths of the
program are the team approach, ability to work in the community, and group
sessions that help build social skills and reduce isolation.
During the interview, both program staff and program management also shared
hindrances they faced in providing services to the youth. Program management
and staff conveyed that they have recently started serving consumers who were
also Regional Center consumers, often with developmental challenges in
addition to mental health challenges. These clients often need a higher and
different level of care and services than consumers they had previously served.
Additionally, staff expressed that the time required to complete their
administrative tasks encroaches on the time allotted for preparing for services
(e.g., groups and other activities). Staff indicated this was linked to turnover and
burn-out, and may contribute to the “over-stressed” quality that consumers have
observed. This also mirrors concerns expressed by program management. It is
recommended that Fred Finch review ways to streamline administrative tasks to
optimize the administrative vs. services duties balance. Staff also faced difficulty
coordinating aftercare, step-down services, or day services geared towards TAY
consumers. However, staff did indicate that overall they felt like they were
meeting the needs of their clients, and appreciated the flexibility to tailor
treatment to their client’s cultural background.
Results. Interviews with program participants and service providers and
program participant survey results all support that the program meets the values
of MHSA.
2. Serve the agreed upon target population. For Community Services and
Supports, does the program serve adults with a serious mental illness or children
or youth with a serious emotional disturbance. Does the program serve the
agreed upon target population (such as age group, underserved community).
Method. Compare the program description and/or service work plan with a
random sampling of client charts or case files.
Discussion. The Fred Finch Youth Center Full Service Partnership program
accepts referrals upon receiving approval from the West County Adult Clinic.
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The FSP program undergoes regular utilization reviews conducted by the West
County Adult Mental Health Clinic’s utilization review staff to ensure all clients
meet the criteria for both specialty mental health services and adult full service
partnerships. The MHSA chart review conducted by the MHSA Program and
Fiscal Review team confirms that the five charts reviewed met the agreed upon
target population for full service partnerships.
Results. The program serves the agreed upon population.
3. Provide the services for which funding was allocated. Does the program
provide the number and type of services that have been agreed upon.
Method. Compare the service work plan or program service goals with regular
reports and match with case file reviews and client/family member and service
provider interviews.
Discussion. Monthly service summaries and 931 and 864 Reports from Contra
Costa County Behavioral Health’s billing system, and a randomly selected chart
review show that the Fred Finch Youth Center Full Service Partnership program
is providing the number and type of services that have been agreed upon in the
service work plan. Program staff interviews, program participant interviews, and
family member interviews demonstrated staff available 24 hours a day, 7 days a
week for Full Service Partnership clients. Services include outreach and
engagement, case management, individual outpatient mental health services,
group therapy/rehab, medication evaluation, crisis intervention, collateral,
housing, and employment/vocational support. Nonetheless, one area that Fred
Finch found a challenge to grapple with was money management. While money
management is a service included in Service Work Plans for Full Service
Partnerships, Fred Finch has found it more advantageous to their therapeutic
outcomes to contract with a third party for money management. They previously
subcontracted with Rubicon, but when that agency discontinued their money
management services, they considered CrissCross and County money
management services. However, the $40 monthly charge that CrissCross
leverages for their services has created a concern and hindrance from engaging
with those services, as this is a significant percentage of the consumers’ monthly
payments. Therefore, most consumers requiring money management utilize the
County’s money management services. It is recommended that Fred Finch
continue to work closely with the County to determine the best way to facilitate
the money management services for their consumers.
Results. Interviews and chart reviews demonstrate that MHSA funds are
directed to the agency to cover expenditures associated with supporting the
provision of the Fred Finch Youth Center’s Full Service Partnership program.
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4. Meet the needs of the community and/or population. Is the program meeting
the needs of the population/community for which it was designed. Has the
program been authorized by the Board of Supervisors as a result of a community
program planning process. Is the program consistent with the MHSA Three Year
Program and Expenditure Plan.
Method. Research the authorization and inception of the program for adherence
to the Community Program Planning Process. Match the service work plan or
program description with the Three Year Plan. Compare with consumer/family
member and service provider interviews. Review client surveys.
Discussion. The Full Service Partnership programs were included in the original
Community Services and Supports plan that was approved in May 2006 and
included in subsequent plan updates. The Fred Finch CCTAY program was
originally authorized by County Board of Supervisors in fiscal year 2009/10. The
service work plan is consistent with the current MHSA Three-Year Program and
Expenditure Plan. Interviews with program staff, program participants and family
members indicate services provided by program are consistent with the service
work plan.
Results. Services delivered through program are consistent with service work
plan and three year program and expenditure plan.
5. Serve the number of individuals that have been agreed upon. Has the
program been serving the number of individuals specified in the program
description/service work plan, and how has the number served been trending the
last three years.
Method. Match program description/service work plan with history of monthly
reports and verify with supporting documentation, such as logs, sign-in sheets
and case files.
Discussion. Fred Finch has a target enrollment goal of an average 70
consumers per month. They have been hovering around 50-60% capacity for the
past two years. Several reasons have been identified, with the primary ones
being the higher acuity level of clients and difficult referral process. Program
management indicated that this may be due to a shift in the past few years in
how the County utilizes FSP programs, as well as the need for consumers to stay
in the program longer due to a gap in the availability of step-down care.
Additionally, Fred Finch has recently started accepting consumers from the
Regional Center, which require a more intensive level of care. Fred Finch also
indicated that they currently have a wait list for consumers to enroll in their
program; however, the reason disclosed for this was that recent staff turnover
has resulted in a temporary lack of staff availability.
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Results. Annually the program has served the number of individuals specified in
the service work plan. Fred Finch and County staff may need to examine the
current program caseload and re-evaluate appropriate staff-to-client ratios in the
Service Work Plan to reflect the complexity of the clients being served.
6. Achieve the outcomes that have been agreed upon. Is the program meeting
the agreed upon outcome goals, and how has the outcomes been trending.
Method. Match outcomes reported for the last three years with outcomes
projected in the program description/service work plan, and verify validity of
outcome with supporting documentation, such as case files or charts. Outcome
domains include, as appropriate, incidence of restriction, incidence of psychiatric
crisis, meaningful activity, psychiatric symptoms, consumer satisfaction/quality of
life, and cost effectiveness. Analyze the level of success by the context, as
appropriate, of pre- and post-intervention, control versus experimental group,
year-to-year difference, comparison with similar programs, or measurement to a
generally accepted standard.
Discussion. The program has five program objectives as part of the service
work plan. The program provides an annual report summarizing their progress
towards meeting the five outcomes. The program has continually met or
exceeded the three primary objectives (including reduction in psychiatric
emergency services and inpatient psychiatric services). Data provided by the
County comes from (1) service data generated from the Contra Costa County
claims processing system, (2) data collected by the program, and (3) the
County’s data system.
The County is also currently working with the Full Service Partnership programs
to start capturing “meaningful activity” days for participants, particularly as it
relates to vocational activities. Fred Finch currently engages in the IPS
(Individual Placement and Support) Supported Employment evidence-based
practice. It is suggested that Fred Finch may want work with the County to help
streamline some of the principals of this practice with the Meaningful Activity
outcome being developed.
Results. Overall, the program achieves its primary objectives.
7. Quality Assurance. How does the program assure quality of service provision.
Method. Review and report on results of participation in County’s utilization
review, quality management incidence reporting, and other appropriate means of
quality of service review.
Discussion. Contra Costa County did not receive any grievances associated
with Fred Finch’s Full Service Partnership program. The program has an internal
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grievance procedure in place and clients receive information on how to file
complaints as part of the agency’s Notice of Privacy Practices. The program
undergoes regular Level 1 and Level 2 utilization reviews conducted by the
County Mental Health utilization review teams to ensure that program services
and documentation meet regulatory standards. However, the County’s Utilization
Review department has indicated that they have not conducted a Centralized
Review in the past three years. In the meantime, the program relies on its Level
1 reviews conducted by the West County Clinic staff for guidance in County
billing requirements. During the last program review, it was noted that the
previous Centralized Review noted a minor issue associated with late billing.
During this review process, it was clearly demonstrated that Fred Finch has
corrected that issue in its regular practice. It is recommended that the County
schedule a Centralized Review for Fred Finch’s CCTAY program to support the
clinical Level 1 review.
Results. The program has a quality assurance process in place.
8. Ensure protection of confidentiality of protected health information. What
protocols are in place to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Assurance (HIPAA) Act, and how well does staff comply with the
protocol.
Method. Match the HIPAA Business Associate service contract attachment with
the observed implementation of the program’s implementation of a protocol for
safeguarding protected patient health information.
Discussion. Fred Finch has written policies and provides staff training on
HIPAA requirements and safeguarding of patient information. The program has
recently adopted a new electronic health record, where new charting is done.
Paper charts are still kept on each client, and stored in a locked cabinet in an
administrative office. The program has an internal auditing process that takes
place every six months, to ensure sound record keeping practices. Clients and
program participants are informed about their privacy rights and rules of
confidentiality.
Results. The program complies with HIPAA requirements.
9. Staffing sufficient for the program. Is there sufficient dedicated staff to deliver
the services, evaluate the program for sufficiency of outcomes and continuous
quality improvement, and provide sufficient administrative support.
Method. Match history of program response with organization chart, staff
interviews and duty statements.
Discussion. At the time of the site visit, Fred Finch indicated that there had
been some recent turnover and they had two clinician vacancies on the CCTAY
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team. However, the nature of the team approach Fred Finch’s program and staff
training allows Fred Finch to provide the services outlined in the Service Work
Plan with current staffing. However, as mentioned above, they are currently
unable to match the numbers in the Service Work Plan, and had a wait list at the
time of this review. The experience level of the treatment team varied from a few
years of experience in mental health to this being their first position in mental
health. Fred Finch has a robust internal training program aimed at identifying
and addressing a variety of mental health issues in their training process.
However, staff indicated that they often do not have the capacity to take
advantage of the trainings due to the amount of administrative tasks.
Results. Staffing is in place to provide the full range of services, but not serve
the number of clients outlined in the Service Work Plan. Moreover, the turnover
of program staff is a potential cause for concern as it may affect the program’s
ability to effectively serve clients. It takes time for service providers to learn about
the various resources available through Contra Costa Behavioral Health’s
System of Care, and knowledge of the System of Care is critical when serving
clients with complex behavioral health service needs who may need to be
referred to other providers for additional care. Fred Finch may want to examine
how it recruits and retains staff and consider offering additional incentives to
ensure qualified individuals are retained and able to offer the full spectrum of
services.
10. Annual independent fiscal audit. Did the organization have an annual
independent fiscal audit performed and did the independent auditors issue any
findings.
Method. Obtain and review audited financial statements. If applicable, discuss
any findings or concerns identified by auditors with fiscal manager.
Discussion. Fred Finch Youth Center (FFYC) is a 501(c)3 tax exempt non-profit
organization providing mental health and social services to children, young
adults, and their families. Services are provide in three major settings: residential
services at its campuses in Oakland and San Diego, California; community
based programs in Alameda, Contra Costa, San Diego, San Francisco, and San
Mateo counties; and services in schools in Alameda and Contra Costa counties.
Funding is received substantially from local, county, and state agencies with
certain portion of its funding originating with the federal government.
Results. Annual independent fiscal audits for FY 2013- 14, 2014-15 and 15-16
were provided and reviewed. Fred Finch has complied with annual audit
requirements and no material or significant findings were noted.
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11. Fiscal resources sufficient to deliver and sustain the services. Does
organization have diversified revenue sources, adequate cash flow, sufficient
coverage of liabilities, and qualified fiscal management to sustain program.
Method. Review audited financial statements. Review Board of Directors
meeting minutes. Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. The Board of Director meeting minutes indicate regular attention to
the organization’s fiscal well-being, as demonstrated by regular reports on the
indicator of sufficient liquid fiscal reserves to carry on operations for over 90 days
without revenue.
Results. Fred Finch’s fiscal resources are currently sufficient to deliver and
sustain services.
12. Oversight sufficient to comply with generally accepted accounting
principles. Does organization have appropriate qualified staff and internal
controls to assure compliance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Method. Interview with fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. The Northern California Regional Vice President and Accounting
Manager were interviewed. Both maintain that there is a segregation of financial
duties. The Accounting Manager is a licensed CPA and confirmed that a total of
nine staff are currently performing a variety of various duties, such as payroll,
expense processing, billing and bank reconciliation. All duties are reviewed,
approved and finalized by the Accounting Manager. The organization uses
Financial Edge to track personnel time entry and aggregation to enable accurate
summaries for billing and payment.
Results. Sufficient oversight exists to enable compliance with generally
accepted accounting principles.
13. Documentation sufficient to support invoices. Do the organization’s financial
reports support monthly invoices charged to the program and ensure no
duplicate billing.
Method. Reconcile financial system with monthly invoices. Interview fiscal
manager of program.
Discussion. A randomly selected invoice for each of the last three years was
matched with supporting documentation provided by the agency. The amounts
on each of the invoices were reconciled with the amounts shown in the detailed
chart of accounts. A clear and accurate connection was established between
documented hours worked and submitted invoices.
Results. The organization uses an established software program with
appropriate supporting documentation protocol to ensure that there is no
duplicate billing.
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14. Documentation sufficient to support allowable expenditures. Does
organization have sufficient supporting documentation (payroll records and
timecards, receipts, allocation bases/statistics) to support program personnel and
operating expenditures charged to the program.
Method. Match random sample of one month of supporting documentation for
each fiscal year (up to three years) for identification of personnel costs and
operating expenditures invoiced to the county.
Discussion. Fred Finch Youth Center has a cost based contract with the
county, and should be billing for actual allowable costs incurred and paid. Each
staff position is assigned solely to the Contra Costa CCTAY FSP program and
there are no other programs operated at that location, with the exception of
Senior Director, whose salary is divided up among the programs he manages.
Operating expenses are posted directly to the Contra Costa CCTAY FSP
program. Line item personnel and operating costs were reviewed for
appropriateness. All line items submitted were consistent with line items that are
appropriate to support the service delivery.
Results. Method of allocation of percentage of personnel time and operating
costs charged to this contract appear to be justified and documented.
15. Documentation sufficient to support expenditures invoiced in appropriate
fiscal year. Do organization’s financial system year end closing entries support
expenditures invoiced in appropriate fiscal year (i.e., fiscal year in which
expenditures were incurred regardless of when cash flows).
Method. Reconcile year end closing entries in financial system with invoices.
Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. Fred Finch uses the accrual basis of accounting with a 12 month
fiscal year end of June 30. Total contract billing was within contract limits, with
no billing by this agency for expenses incurred and paid in a previous fiscal year.
Results. Fred Finch appears to be implementing an appropriate year end closing
system.
16. Administrative costs sufficiently justified and appropriate to the total cost
of the program. Is the organization’s allocation of administrative/indirect costs
to the program commensurate with the benefit received by the program.
Method. Review methodology and statistics used to allocate
administrative/indirect costs. Interview Accounting Manager for program.
Discussion. The Accounting Manager indicated indirect costs are allocated to
the different programs based on the gross cost of each program. The current
allocation is approximately 14-18%. This is an acceptable approach for
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allocation consistent with Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Cost
Principles for Non Profit Organizations.
Results. The organization allocates indirect costs using an appropriate
methodology.
17. Insurance policies sufficient to comply with contract. Does the organization
have insurance policies in effect that are consistent with the requirements of the
contract.
Method. Review insurance policies.
Discussion. Fred Finch provided evidence that sufficient commercial general
liability insurance, umbrella liability, workers compensation insurance, automobile
insurance, and professional liability insurance was in place at the time of the site
review.
Results. The organization is in compliance with the insurance requirements of
the contract.
18. Effective communication between contract manager and contractor. Do
both the contract manager and contractor staff communicate routinely and clearly
regarding program activities, and any program or fiscal issues as they arise.
Method. Interview contract manager and contractor staff.
Discussion. Fred Finch staff has semi-frequent communication with the County
Contract Manager and MHSA staff to discuss outcomes and any fiscal
challenges to the program. Additionally, the West County clinic staff meets with
contract staff regularly to discuss referrals and outcomes. The contract manager
tracks the outcome measures. However, increased regularity in communication
between the contract manager and the program may be more beneficial to both
CCBHS and Fred Finch. It is recommended that more regular communication
occur between Fred Finch, the County contract monitor, and clinical staff to help
ensure smoother referral process and help identify and address possible
administrative and programming issues.
Results. The program has historically had relatively good communication with
the contract manager and is receptive to feedback and willing to address
concerns that may arise.
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VIII.

Summary of Results.
Fred Finch is committed to providing innovative, effective, caring mental health
and social services to children, young adults, and their families that allow them to
build on their strengths, overcome challenges, and live healthy and productive
lives. The Fred Finch Transition-Age Youth Full Service Partnership in West
Contra Costa County serves their target population, meets the outcomes detailed
in their contract, and adheres to the values of MHSA. The program staff and
program participants believe the program is valuable. Fred Finch appears to be a
financially sound organization that follows generally accepted accounting
principles, and maintains documentation that supports agreed upon service
expenditures.

IX.

Findings for Further Attention.









X.

It is recommended that Fred Finch review ways to streamline
administrative tasks to optimize time for direct services. Fred Finch may
want to examine how it recruits and retains staff and consider offering
additional incentives to ensure qualified individuals are retained and able
to offer the full spectrum of services.
Fred Finch and County staff may need to examine the current program
caseload and re-evaluate staff-to-client ratios to appropriately reflect the
complexity of the clients being served.
It is recommended that Fred Finch continue to work closely with the
County to determine the best way to facilitate money management
services for their consumers.
It is recommended that the County schedule a Centralized Review for
Fred Finch’s CCTAY program to support the clinical Level 1 review.
It is recommended that more regular communication occur between Fred
Finch, the County contract monitor, and clinical staff to help ensure a
smoother referral process and help identify and address possible
administrative and programming issues.

Next Review Date. November 2020
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XI.

Appendices.

Appendix A – Program Description/Service Work Plan
Appendix B – Service Provider Budget
Appendix C – Yearly External Fiscal Audit
Appendix D – Organization Chart
XII.

Working Documents that Support Findings.

Consumer Listing
Consumer, Family Member Surveys
Consumer, Family Member, Provider Interviews
County MHSA Monthly Financial Report
Program and Fiscal Review from March 2014
Progress Reports, Outcomes
Monthly Invoices with Supporting Documentation
Indirect Cost Allocation Methodology/Plan
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes
Insurance Policies
MHSA Three Year Plan and Update(s)
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Contra Costa County Behavioral Health
Mental Health Services Act (MHSA)
Program and Fiscal Review

I.

Date of On-Site Review: October 26, 2017
Date of Exit Interview: December 14, 2017

II.

Review Team: Jennifer Bruggeman, Warren Hayes, Windy Taylor

III.

Program:

IV.

Program Description. RYSE is a youth center in Richmond that offers a wide
range of activities, programs, and classes for young people, including media arts,
health education, career and educational support, and youth leadership and
advocacy. RYSE operates within a community behavioral health model and
employs trauma informed and healing centered approaches in all areas of
engagement, including one-on-one, group and larger community efforts. In these
areas, RYSE focuses on the conditions, impact and strategies to name and
address community distress, stigma, and mental health inequities linked to
historical trauma and racism, as well as complex, chronic trauma. This focus
enables RYSE to provide culturally relevant, empathetic, and timely community
mental health and wellness services, resources, and supports across all program
areas and levels of engagement.

RYSE, Inc.
205 41st Street
Richmond, CA 94805

Prevention and Early Intervention (PEI) services include the following program
components: A) Trauma Response and Resilience System (TRRS): develop and
implement trauma and healing learning for key system partners, facilitate
development of a coordinated community response to violence and trauma,
evaluate impact of trauma informed practices, and provide critical response and
crisis relief for young people experiencing acute incidents of violence. B) Health
and Wellness: support young people (ages 13 to 21) from the diverse
communities of West County to become better informed consumers and active
agents of their own health and wellness, support young people in expressing and
addressing the impact of stigma, discrimination and community distress; and
foster healthy peer and youth-adult relationships. Activities include mental health
counseling and referrals, outreach to schools, workshops and ‘edutainment’
1

activities that promote inclusion, healing and justice, and youth assessment and
implementation of partnership plans (Chat it Up Plans). C) Inclusive Schools:
facilitate collaborative work with West Contra Costa (WCC) schools and
organizations working with and in schools aimed at making WCCUSD an
environment free of stigma, discrimination, and isolation for LGBTQ students.
Activities include assistance in provision of LGBTQ specific services, conducting
organizational assessments, training for adults and students, engaging students
in leadership activities, and providing support groups at target schools.
V.

Purpose of Review. Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services (CCBHS) is
committed to evaluating the effective use of funds provided by the Mental Health
Services Act. Toward this end, a comprehensive program and fiscal review was
conducted of the above program. The results of this review are contained herein,
and will assist in a) improving the services and supports that are provided, b)
more efficiently supporting the County’s MHSA Three Year Program and
Expenditure Plan, and c) ensuring compliance with statute, regulations and
policy. In the spirit of continually working toward better services, we most
appreciate this opportunity to collaborate together with the staff and clients
participating in this program in order to review past and current efforts, and plan
for the future.

VI.

Executive Summary of Findings. The review covered 18 topics related to
MHSA guidelines, quality programming and fiscal responsibility.

Topic
1. Deliver services according to the
values of the MHSA

Met
Standard
Yes

2. Serve the agreed upon target
population

Yes

3. Provide the services for which
funding was allocated

Yes

4. Meet the needs of the community
and/or population
5. Serve the number of individuals
that have been agreed upon

Yes
Yes

6. Achieve the outcomes that have
been agreed upon

Yes

7. Quality Assurance

Yes

Notes
Program has referred many
participants to the CCMH system
Program serves participants that
have been exposed to risk factors
associated with developing mental
illness
The entire RYSE program is a
prevention service, with MHSA only
a partial funding source
Program is consistent with CCMH
prevention strategy
Program meets or exceeds the
targeted number of participants
Success indicators should be
refined and simplified based on
program’s experience
Participants indicated program
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Topic

Met
Standard

8. Ensure protection of
confidentiality of protected health
information

Yes

9. Staffing sufficient for the program

Yes

10. Annual independent fiscal audit

Yes

11. Fiscal resources sufficient to
deliver and sustain the services

Yes

12. Oversight sufficient to comply
with generally accepted
accounting principles

Yes

13. Documentation sufficient to
support invoices

Yes

14. Documentation sufficient to
support allowable expenditures

Yes

15. Documentation sufficient to
support expenditures invoiced
in appropriate fiscal year
16. Administrative costs sufficiently
justified and appropriate to the
total cost of the program
17. Insurance policies sufficient to
comply with contract
18. Effective communication
between contract manager and
contractor
VII.

Yes

Notes
provides quality services
The program is HIPAA compliant but
should develop written policies and
procedures
Participants indicate staffing is
sufficient
No concerns indicated by
independent auditor for last 3 years
Program receives funding from
multiple sources
It is suggested that the program’s
written accounting policies and
procedures be updated to reflect
current practices
MHSA funds less than 25% of the
program
It is suggested that staffing time
directly attributable to mental health
care be depicted in the contract with
CCBHS
Documentation supports that funds
are fully expended prior to the end
of the fiscal year

Yes

The program follows an accepted
allocation approach for indirect costs

Yes

Organization maintains appropriate
insurance policies

Yes

Contract manager and contractor
meet at least quarterly

Review Results. Results for each of the 18 elements/topics listed above are
described below.

1. Deliver services according to the values of the Mental Health Services Act
(California Code of Regulations Section 3320 – General Standards). Does the
program collaborate with the community, provide an integrated service
experience, promote wellness, recovery and resilience, and are services
culturally relevant and client & family driven?
Method. Consumer and service provider interviews and consumer surveys.
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Discussion. Interviews were conducted with six program participants and six
program staff. A 12-question survey was given to participants. We received a
total of 34 surveys. The following table summarizes the survey results.
Responses are consistent with consumer interviews, show an overwhelmingly
positive evaluation of the program by participants, and show adherence to MHSA
values.
Questions
Please indicate how
strongly you agree or
disagree with the following
statements regarding
persons who work with you:
(Options: strongly agree,
agree, disagree, strongly
disagree, I don’t know)
1. Help me improve my
health and wellness

2. Allow me to decide my
own strengths and
needs.
3. Work with me to
determine the services
that are most helpful.
4. Provide services that
are sensitive to my
cultural background.
5. Provide services that
are in my preferred
language.
6. Help me in getting
needed health,
employment, education
and other benefits and
services.
7. Are open to my
opinions as to how
services should be
provided.
8. What does this program
do well?

Responses: 34

Strongly
Agree
4

Agree Disagree Strongly I
Disagree Don’t
Know
3
2
1
0

Average score: 3.4 (n=32)
“n” denotes the number of respondents who
scored the item between 1 and 4. The remainder
of respondents either did not score or scored “I
don’t know.”
Average score: 3.3 (n=32)

Average score: 3.3 (n=33)

Average score: 3.4 (n=31)

Average score: 3.5 (n=33)

Average score: 3.6 (n=33)

Average score: 3.5 (n=30)

Answers included the following statements:
• They are very good with advice, you can
count on them for anything
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Feed us
Computers, homework
Keeping you safe and entertained
Provide space to do work
Keep me off the street and connect with
people
Help me find my voice
Provide safe spaces, educational and
artistic classes
RYSE makes you feel more like yourself,
they bring out the real you!
Listen to our needs, try to provide us with
answers
They make people feel safe and they have
something for everyone
Makes everyone feel welcome
Helps out with school/life problems
Speak with me about my health
RYSE is good at providing us with a space
to heal and talk about our feelings, which
we may not get at home
They don’t turn away anyone

9. What does this program Answers included the following statements:
need to improve upon?
• More cooking classes along with more
financial help with events, and financial
help with transportation for kids who might
need help to get home
• Maintenance
• The kitchen area and the food
• If a person doesn’t want a check-in, they
shouldn’t get one
• Be more strict on making sure no one gets
bullied
• More Tasty Tuesdays
• Member attitudes
10. What needed services
Answers included the following statements:
and supports are
• A chill-out room for members to hang and
missing?
have a bonding area zone with no staff
• Space to lounge
• Communication
• Provide mental health classes, selfdefense classes, job searching classes
• Services for people with mental illness
• Sports programs
5

11. How important is this
Very
Important Somewhat Not
program in helping you
Important
Important Important
improve your health
4
3
2
1
and wellness, live a
Average score: 3.5 (n=33)
self-directed life, and
reach your full potential.
(Options: very
important, important,
somewhat important,
not important)
12. Any additional
Answers included the following statements:
comments?
• RYSE is a place for others to come and
have something to do when members
don’t have any other plans
• Helps understand what you’ll need in life
• I love RYSE, RYSE should have more
recommendations
• I come to RYSE everyday

Most of the six staff interviewed are former RYSE members. They reported
feeling that RYSE promotes their career growth and is a supportive environment
to work in. Staff get to vote on what trainings are provided, and they receive two
weeks per year of staff development time. They acknowledged that while the
trauma and healing focused work they do is intense, they identified means of
self-care and reported that the administration supports this by offering things
such as: Restoration Week, a quality health plan (that includes acupuncture), and
an infrastructure that speaks to overall wellness.
Positive feedback from the six youth interviewed included a collective feeling that
RYSE is a safe place to come where everyone is welcome and wanted just as
they are. They spoke to the many positive activities (including cooking, art,
dance, music) as well as the opportunity to connect with people and make
friends. They indicated that RYSE offers a non-judgmental space, and that the
staff meets members where they are at. They said that RYSE has opened doors
for them to better themselves and find out what motivates them.
Results.
The program delivers services according to the values of the MHSA, as staff and
consumers both report a healing atmosphere that promotes wellness and
recovery for youth in West Contra Costa County who experience persistent
atmospheric trauma. RYSE provides an integrated service by referring members
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to Contra Costa Children’s Mental Health Services or Seneca’s Mobile Response
Team, when the need arises. In addition, through their hospital linked violence
intervention program, they have taken many referrals from John Muir hospital this
year.
2. Serve the agreed upon target population. For Prevention and Early
Intervention, does the program prevent the development of a serious mental
illness or serious emotional disturbance, and help reduce disparities in service?
Does the program serve the agreed upon target population (such as age group,
underserved community)?
Method. Compare the program description and/or service work plan with results
of client and staff interviews.
Discussion. The program applies an integrated approach to identifying youth
who may be seriously mentally ill or seriously emotionally disturbed and whom
staff can refer to a case conference or a counselor. This program is a model of
what a prevention program should be in terms of serving a target population that
is exposed to many risk factors associated with developing mental illness (such
as community violence and poverty). The program also provides outreach
services to individuals outside and inside the program. The program is able to
make appropriate referrals because it is well connected to different systems
(hospitals, probation, schools). The facility is located in the heart of an
underserved community. The program models a safe, healthy environment in an
area challenged by violence, poverty and lack of opportunity.
Results. The program serves the agreed upon population.
3. Provide the services for which funding was allocated. Does the program
provide the number and type of services that have been agreed upon?
Method. Compare the service work plan or program goals with regular reports
and match with client and service provider interviews.
Discussion. Contra Costa Mental Health currently funds $474,144 of a $2.2
million total budget (approximately 22 percent). The following RYSE programs
are funded by MHSA: Health and Wellness, Trauma Response and Resiliency,
and Inclusive Schools.
Results. Monthly service summaries as well as semi-annual reports are
provided by the program. Services are offered both on site, as well as offsite
through events, trainings and workshops at local schools, partner agency sites
and within juvenile hall. The program is providing services for which funding was
allocated.

7

4. Meet the needs of the community and/or population. Is the program meeting
the needs of the population/community for which it was designed? Has the
program been authorized by the Board of Supervisors as a result of a community
program planning process? Is the program consistent with the MHSA Three
Year Program and Expenditure Plan?
Method. Research the authorization and inception of the program for adherence
to the Community Program Planning Process. Match the service work plan and
program description with the MHSA Three Year Plan. Compare with consumer
member and service provider interviews. Review client surveys.
Discussion. This program was included in the original PEI plan that was
approved by the state in May 2010. The program has been authorized by the
Board of Supervisors and is consistent with the current three year program and
expenditure plan as well as the PEI regulations on prevention programs. RYSE
has plans for expansion in the upcoming triennial cycle, which will further meet
the needs of consumers and provide much needed space for additional
programming. Interviews with program participants and service providers
support the service work plan as an MHSA Prevention strategy.
Results. The program meets the needs of the community and the population for
which it is designed.
5. Serve the number of individuals that have been agreed upon. Has the
program been serving the number of individuals specified in the program
description/service work plan, and how has the number served been trending the
last three years?
Method. Match program description/service work plan with history of monthly
reports and verify with supporting documentation, such as logs, sign-in sheets
and case files.
Discussion. The program provides monthly and semiannual reports which are
reviewed by the contract manager. Per discussion, they have calculated the
number of individuals served differently than in previous years in order to
determine unduplicated numbers. Individuals are served on site, as well as
offsite through various outreach efforts.
Results. It is recommended that the Service Work Plan be modified to reflect
the actual number of clients being served.
6. Achieve the outcomes that have been agreed upon. Is the program meeting
the agreed upon outcome goals, and how have the outcomes been trending.
Method. Match outcomes reported for the last three years with outcomes
projected in the program description/service work plan, and verify validity of
outcome with supporting documentation, such as case files or charts. Outcome
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domains include, as appropriate, incidence of restriction, incidence of psychiatric
crisis, meaningful activity, psychiatric symptoms, consumer satisfaction/quality of
life, and cost effectiveness. Analyze the level of success by the context, as
appropriate, of pre- and post-intervention, control versus experimental group,
year-to-year difference, comparison with similar programs, or measurement to a
generally accepted standard.
Discussion. The service work plan describes numerous agreed upon measures
of success. Measurement is conducted through member surveys and number of
clients served. The service work plan had a total of nine success indicators and
the program met or exceeded all of the indicators.
Results. The program reduced the number of indicators reported during the last
triennial review, per recommendation. The indicators are focused on improving
mental health and overall wellness, increasing positive relationships and selfefficacy, and are offered through culturally relevant and trauma informed
practices.
7. Quality Assurance. How does the program assure quality of service provision?
Method. Review and report on results of participation in County’s utilization
review, quality management incidence reporting, and other appropriate means of
quality of service review.
Discussion. Contra Costa County did not receive any grievances towards the
program. The program has an internal grievance process and allows program
participants to address issues during house meetings.
Results. Interviews with program staff and participants indicated the program
provides quality services.
8. Ensure protection of confidentiality of protected health information. What
protocols are in place to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Assurance (HIPAA) Act, and how well does staff comply with the
protocol?
Method. Match the HIPAA Business Associate service contract attachment with
the observed implementation of the program’s implementation of a protocol for
safeguarding protected patient health information.
Discussion. The program does not have established written policies, as the
program is not a Medi-Cal provider. All staff receive training around
confidentiality practices. Files and documents containing protected health
information (PHI) are stored in a double locked cabinet.
Results. The program complies with appropriate confidentiality guidelines and
protocols.
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9. Staffing sufficient for the program. Is there sufficient dedicated staff to deliver
the services, evaluate the program for sufficiency of outcomes and continuous
quality improvement, and provide sufficient administrative support?
Method. Match history of program response with organization chart, staff
interviews and duty statements.
Discussion. Program staffing is fairly robust due to the diversity of funding
streams. Since the previous triennial review, RYSE has expanded its staffing in
both fiscal and programming (direct services) departments.
Results. Interviews with program participants and staff indicate the program has
sufficient staffing.
10. Annual independent fiscal audit. Did the organization have an annual
independent fiscal audit performed and did the independent auditors issue any
findings.
Method. Obtain and review audited financial statements. If applicable, discuss
any findings or concerns identified by auditors with fiscal manager.
Discussion. The organization provided single audit reports for the last three
years. The auditors did not identify any material concerns and stated the
financial statements fairly represent the consolidated financial position of RYSE.
RYSE’s revenues significantly increased this last year. In particular, fund raising
increases have enabled RYSE to responsibly expand goods and services that
directly benefit the youth who participate in their programming.
Results. RYSE complied with the annual audit requirement and there were no
findings or concerns expressed by the independent auditors. The reliance on
Contra Costa County funding is not considered a concern given the fairly
significant assets on hand.
11. Fiscal resources sufficient to deliver and sustain the services. Does the
organization have diversified revenue sources, adequate cash flow, sufficient
coverage of liabilities, and qualified fiscal management to sustain program or
plan element.
Method. Review audited financial statements. Review Board of Directors
meeting minutes. Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. The financial statements indicated fairly significant assets on hand
which could be used to sustain services. The Board of Directors minutes did not
identify any issues related to the fiscal operations. The program is fairly well
diversified with respect to revenues and management and appears to have the
ability to obtain additional funding as needed. RYSE has a significant line of
credit that they have not needed to use for cash flow purposes.
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Results. RYSE has sufficient fiscal resources to deliver and sustain the
services.
12. Oversight sufficient to comply with generally accepted accounting
principles. Does organization have appropriate qualified staff and internal
controls to assure compliance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Method. Interview with fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. The program has doubled their fiscal staff in the last three years,
and utilizes considerably more sophisticated software programming to track and
manage staff time and operating costs. It was noted that this significant
improvement in the last three years has understandably adjusted accounting
policies and procedures. It is suggested that RYSE re-visit and revise, if
necessary, their written fiscal policies and procedures. Fiscal staff have
extensive accounting experience, and have appropriate checks and balances in
place to ensure segregation of duties.
Results. RYSE has sufficient qualified personnel and oversight protocols to
appropriately follow generally accepted accounting principles.
13. Documentation sufficient to support invoices. Do the organization’s financial
reports support monthly invoices charged to the program and ensure no
duplicate billing.
Method. Reconcile financial system with monthly invoices. Interview fiscal
manager of program.
Discussion. The program invoices for actual personnel and operating
expenditures and provides the supporting summary documentation as part of the
monthly invoice. The supporting documentation, such as time tracking and
operating cost receipts, reconciled with the monthly invoices.
Results. The documentation is sufficient to support the amount of expenditures
charged to the program.
14. Documentation sufficient to support allowable expenditures. Does
organization have sufficient supporting documentation (payroll records and
timecards, receipts, allocation bases/statistics) to support program personnel and
operating expenditures charged to the program.
Method. Match random sample of one month of supporting documentation for
each fiscal year (up to three years) for identification of personnel costs and
operating expenditures invoiced to the county.
Discussion. Personnel costs are charged to the program based on the actual
personnel costs by position for the month multiplied by the percentage of time
allocated to the program in the budget for each position. The percentage of time
11

by position was developed based on the initial program inception and has not
been revised in recent years to reflect actual experience. Also, the total actual
costs of the program exceed what is paid for by MHSA and is supported by other
funding sources. All staff materially contribute to the prevention and early
intervention mission of reducing risk for developing a serious mental illness.
However, RYSE is strategically planning on continued expansion, and will be
adding to their community activism and social justice efforts.
Results. While documentation is sufficient to support allowable expenses it is
suggested that the program align the activities of each position more closely with
the amount of time spent on activities directly related to mental health care, crisis
intervention, and warm handoffs to programs providing a higher acuity of
behavioral health care.
15. Documentation sufficient to support expenditures invoiced in appropriate
fiscal year. Do organization’s financial system year end closing entries support
expenditures invoiced in appropriate fiscal year (i.e., fiscal year in which
expenditures were incurred regardless of when cash flows).
Method. Reconcile year end closing entries in financial system with invoices.
Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. The program maintains written accounting policies on how to treat
year end transactions. For the last three years RYSE has not billed the County
for expenses that were incurred in the previous fiscal year.
Results. The program invoices for expenditures in the appropriate fiscal year.
16. Administrative costs sufficiently justified and appropriate to the total cost
of the program. Is the organization’s allocation of administrative/indirect costs
to the program commensurate with the benefit received by the program.
Method. Review methodology and statistics used to allocate
administrative/indirect costs. Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. Indirect costs consist of all costs that cannot be directly charged to
a funding source. The auditor has reviewed the approach and has not indicated
any concerns. The agreed upon amount of 10 percent of actual expenses is what
has been charged to the program on a monthly basis.
Results. Administrative costs are sufficiently justified and appropriate to the total
cost of the program.
17. Insurance policies sufficient to comply with contract. Does the organization
have insurance policies in effect that are consistent with the requirements of the
contract.
Method. Review insurance policies.
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Discussion. The program provided general liability insurance policies, auto
insurance policies and workers compensation policies that were in effect at the
time of the site visit.
Results. The program complies with the contract insurance requirements.
18. Effective communication between contract manager and contractor. Do
both the contract manager and contractor staff communicate routinely and clearly
regarding program activities, and any program or fiscal issues as they arise.
Method. Interview contract manager and contractor staff.
Discussion. The program has complied with PEI Regulations imposed by the
state in 2016 that require the collection of new data. The program participates in
quarterly PEI Roundtable meetings, and additional as needed meetings with the
contract manager. The program submits documentation in a timely fashion.
Results. The program has good communication with the contract manager and
appears to be willing to address data issues and other concerns of the contract
manager, as they may arise.
VIII.

IX.

Summary of Results.
The RYSE Center is a much needed, well run program in an economically
disadvantaged area of Contra Costa County. The program adheres to the
principles of Prevention as defined by MHSA. RYSE provides a safe and healing
space for youth in Richmond to receive trauma informed services, activities and
supports, including academic and employment counseling, health advocacy,
mental health care, engagement in a wide range of creative activities, as well as
opportunities for youth leadership and advocacy. MHSA funding covers
approximately 22 percent of the costs of the program. The fiscal administration of
the program is sound. The program has good linkages to other services within
the community, including specialty mental health services, and can make
referrals when program participants are identified as needing such services. The
program participants and staff see the program as a model in the community.
The program has plans to expand through the purchase of the adjacent lot where
they will build “RYSE Commons”, an indoor/outdoor space for additional
programming. The program plans to hire up to 32 additional staff under this
expansion.
Findings for Further Attention.
Fiscal. It is suggested that RYSE 1) review and update their written fiscal
policies and procedures, and 2) review staff allocated time to the MHSA contract,
and for FY 2018-19 align the percentage budgeted for each position to more
13

closely align with the amount of time spent on activities directly related to mental
health care, crisis intervention, and warm handoffs to programs providing a
higher acuity of behavioral health care.
This program models appropriate use of MHSA funds to field an effective
prevention strategy. The culturally appropriate outreach and engagement
strategies and subsequent linkage to mental health care for at-risk youth are
exemplary.
X.

Next Review Date. Fiscal Year 2020-21

XI.

Appendices.

Appendix A – Program Description/Service Plan
Appendix B – Yearly External Fiscal Audit
Appendix C – Organization Chart
XII.

Working Documents that Support Findings.

Consumer, Family Member, Provider Surveys
Consumer, Family Member, Provider Interviews
County MHSA Monthly Financial Report
MHSA Three Year Plan and Update(s)
Monthly Invoices (Contractor)
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes
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Appendix A
RYSE Center
Point of Contact: Kanwarpal Dhaliwal
Contact Information: 205 41st Street, Richmond. CA 94805 (925) 374-3401
Kanwarpal@rysecenter.org http://www.rysecenter.org/
1. General Description of the Organization
RYSE is a youth center in Richmond that offers a wide range of activities, programs,
and classes for young people including media arts, health education, career and
educational support, and youth leadership and advocacy. RYSE operates within a
community Behavioral health model and employs trauma informed and healing
centered approaches in all areas of engagement, including one-on-one, group and
larger community efforts. In these areas, RYSE focuses on the conditions, impact,
and strategies to name and address community distress, stigma, and mental health
inequities linked to historical trauma and racism, as well as complex, chronic trauma.
This focus enables RYSE to provide culturally relevant, empathetic, and timely
community mental health and wellness services, resources, and supports across all
our program areas and levels of engagement.
2. Program: Supporting Youth - PEI.
a. Scope of Services:
i. Trauma Response and Resilience System (TRRS): develop and
implement Trauma and Healing Learning Series for key system partners,
facilitate development of a coordinated community response to violence
and trauma, evaluate impact of trauma informed practice, provide critical
response and crisis relief for young people experiencing acute incidents of
violence (individual, group, and community-wide).
ii.
Health and Wellness: support young people (ages 13 to 21) from the
diverse communities of West County to become better informed (health
services) consumers and active agents of their own health and wellness,
support young people in expressing and addressing the impact of stigma,
discrimination, and community distress; and foster healthy peer and youth
adult relationships. Activities include mental health counseling and
referrals, outreach to schools, workshops and 'edutainment' activities that
promote inclusion, healing, and justice, youth assessment and
implementation of partnership plans (Chat it Up Plans).
iii.
Inclusive Schools: Facilitate collaborative work with West Contra Costa
schools and organizations working with and in schools aimed at making
WCCUSD an environment free of stigma, discrimination, and isolation for
LGBTQ students. Activities include assistance in provision of LGBT
specific services, conducting organizational assessments, training for
adults and students, engaging students in leadership activities, and
providing support groups at target schools, etc.

b. Target Population: West County Youth at risk for developing serious mental
illness.
c. Payment Limit: FY 15-16: $474,144
d. Unique Number served: For FY 15/16: 408 youths
e. Outcomes:
iv.
Trauma and Resilience
• RYSE Youth Restorative Justice (formerly Justice Project) served
young people through probation referrals, community service, juvenile
hall workshops and/or presentations, and drop-in programming
• 90% of total number of youth involved in the Youth Restorative Justice
Project reported increased and/or strong sense of self-efficacy, hope,
and community engagement
• Participants in each session report increased understanding of trauma
informed youth development.
• 200 stakeholders and 87 organizations participated in Trauma and
Healing Learning Series local sessions.
Health and Wellness/Youth Development
v.
• Members will complete wellness plans
• Members will participate in at least 2 program activities aimed at
supporting healthy peer relationships, community engagement, and
leadership
• RYSE youth members will report positively on indicators of social
emotional well-being such as increased feelings of hope, control over
their lives, and a sense of stability and safety, and reduced feelings of
isolation.
• 100% of RYSE staff (youth and adults) were trained to utilize RYSE
social media as a means to address stigma and inequity, elevate
stories of resiliency, and foster peer-lead/consumer-lead information
sharing and education around mental health issues impacting young
people in West Contra Costa County
Inclusive Schools
vi.
• Youth members who identify as LGBTQQ report positive sense of self
efficacy, positive peer relations, youth-adult relations, and agency
consistent with all survey respondents (see above).
• Stakeholders involved in the Inclusive Schools Coalition (renamed
West Contra Costa LGBTQQ Youth Advocacy Network) will report
increased understanding of the priorities and needs of LGBTQ youth
and their peers.

Appendix B

Board of Directors

Appendix C

(Chair: S.Ahuja, Treasurer: A. Fuentes, Secretary: A.Clausen, L.Tate. T. Hester, T. Samuelu, M. Seville, S. Bustamante )

Executive Director
(1 FTE)
K. Aceves
Director of Finance and
Operations
(.8 FTE)
J. Chien

Associate Director
(1 FTE)
K. Dhaliwal

Youth Organizing
Director
(1 FTE)
J. Ebrahimi

Education & Justice
Director
(1FTE)
S. Medley

Economic
Justice
Program
Manager
(1 FTE)

Youth Justice
Program
Manager
(1 FTE)

A. Yeung

A. Murdock

Youth
Organizing
Coord.
(1 FTE)
D. Diaz

Youth
Success
Counselor
(1 FTE)
B. Urrutia

Education
Justice
Coordinator
(1 FTE)
V. Jameson

College
Access
Coord
(1 FTE)
D. Iwuoma

Director of Community
Health
(1 FTE)
J.Kim

Therapist
Intern
(.5FTE)
A. Lucas

Career
Pathways
Coord.
(1FTE)
M. Wilburn

Fellows

Trauma
Response
Specialist/
Victim
Advocate
(1 FTE)
L. Vaughn

Fellows

Director of Media Arts
(1 FTE)
TBD

Community
Health
Program
Manager
B. Villa
(1 FTE)

Clinical Case
Manager
(1 FTE)
D. Scott

Member
Engagement
Coord.
(1 FTE)
R. Joseph
(1FTE_
D. Ramos

Member
Engagement
Assistant
(.75 FTE)

Youth Justice
Assistant
( 1 FTE)
T. Sykes

Fellow(s)/
RYOT
interns

Lead
Therapist
(1 FTE)
M. Snoddy

Innovations Director/
RYSE Commons
(1 FTE)
D. Reilly

Community
Health
Coordinator
TBD
(1 FTE)

Community
Health Assistant
(.6 FTE)
J.Mendoza

Grassroots
Fundraising
Manager

Media Arts
Program
Manager
C. Gordon
(1 FTE)

Video
Coor.
(1 FTE)
G.
Henderson

(1 FTE)
M. Lin

Music &
Performing
Arts Coor.
(1 FTE)
TBD

Studio Technician
(1 FTE)
TBD

Grants
Manager/
Storyteller

Administrative
Manager

1 FTE)

(1 FTE)

L. Tilley

M. Diaz

Visual
Arts
Coordr
(1 FTE)
V.
Espinoza

Creative & Healing
Arts Assistant
(1 FTE)
N. McDowell

Visual Arts
Assistant
(.6 FTE)
F. Rojas

AMP
Fellows

Instructors, Program Consultants, Technical Assistants,Community Program Partners, Partner Interns

Senior
Accountant
R.
Alejandrino
(1 FTE)

Oversight of:
Bookkeeper
Auditor
Accountant

Mental Health Services Act (MHSA)
Program and Fiscal Review
I.

Date of On-site Review: November 13, 2017

II.

Date of Exit Meeting: January 10, 2018

III.

Review Team: Jennifer Bruggeman, Windy Taylor

III.

Name of Program/Plan Element:

IV.

Program Description. The Nurturing Parent Program of Child Abuse
Prevention Council (CAPC) is a Prevention program within the category of
Prevention & Early Intervention (PEI) programs funded through the Mental
Health Services Act (MHSA). Per draft regulations put forth by the Mental Health
Services Oversight and Accountability Commission (MHSOAC), a Prevention
program is a “set of related activities to reduce risk factors for developing a
potentially serious mental illness and to build protective factors.” In light of widely
accepted research, such as the “Adverse Childhood Experiences Study” that
links childhood trauma with negative health and mental health outcomes later in
life, the PEI regulations include as examples of risk factors for developing mental
illness “adverse childhood experiences” and “family conflict or domestic
violence.” Protective factors include healthy bonds within families and the
connectedness of vulnerable families to the wider community and community
resources. The goals of a prevention program should include the “reduction of
applicable negative outcomes listed in the Welfare and Institutions Code Section
5840, subdivision (d) for individuals and members of groups of populations
whose risk of developing a serious mental illness is significantly higher than
average, and, as applicable, their parents, caregivers, and other family
members.” The referenced list of negative outcomes includes suicide,
incarcerations, school failure or drop out, unemployment, prolonged suffering,
homelessness, and removal of children from their homes.

Child Abuse Prevention Council (CAPC)
2120 Diamond Blvd #120
Concord, CA 94520
• Nurturing Parent Program

In accordance with the community program planning process, the original threeyear PEI plan for Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services (CCBHS), approved
in 2009, set the goal of supporting families within communities that are
1

disproportionately affected by higher rates of poverty, school drop-out, and
involvement in juvenile justice and child and family services programs.

The Child Abuse Prevention Council is an organization located in Concord that
is focused on preventing maltreatment of children through providing education
programs and family support services, linking families to community resources,
mentoring, and steering county-wide collaborative initiatives. Prevention services
consist of providing four Nurturing Parenting classes per fiscal year to Spanish
speaking families in Central and East County. The Nurturing Parenting Program
is a 22-week curriculum that helps families develop new communication skills,
alter behavioral patterns, and strengthen healthy family bonds. Sessions include
joint sections for groups of whole families as well as sections for which parents
and children are separated. Participants develop skills along five domains of
parenting: 1) age-appropriate expectations, 2) empathy, bonding and attachment,
3) non-violent nurturing discipline, 4) self-awareness and self-worth, and 5)
empowerment, autonomy & independence. The Nurturing Parenting Programs
are listed in the National Registry of Evidenced-Based Programs and Practices.

V.

Purpose of Review. Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services (CCBHS) is
committed to evaluating the effective use of funds provided by the Mental Health
Services Act. Toward this end, a comprehensive program and fiscal review was
conducted of the above program. The results of this review are contained herein,
and will assist in: a) improving the services and supports that are provided, b)
more efficiently support the County’s MHSA Three Year Program and
Expenditure Plan, and c) ensure compliance with statute, regulations and policy.
In the spirit of continually working toward better services we most appreciate this
opportunity to collaborate together with the staff and clients participating in this
program/plan element in order to review past and current efforts, and plan for the
future.

VI.

Summary of Findings.
Topic
1. Deliver services according to the
values of the MHSA

2. Serve the agreed upon target

Met
Standard
Yes

Yes

Notes
Services are community
based and provided in a
culturally competent
manner.
Services are provided to
2

population.
3. Provide the services for which
funding was allocated.

Yes

underserved communities.
All MHSA funds directly
support the prevention
program.
The program is consistent
with community planning
process and prevention
strategies.
Targeted service numbers
are reached.
Measures of success are
met.
Program participants
testified to high quality of
services.
Program has put
measures in place to be
consistent with
regulations.
Staffing levels are
sufficient.
No material or significant
weaknesses were noted
for FY 14/15. Awaiting
2016 external audit.
The Child Abuse
Prevention Council has
significant net assets to
withstand significant
revenue interruptions.
Experienced staff
implement sound checks
and balance system.
Uses established software
program with appropriate
supporting documentation
protocol.

4. Meet the needs of the community
and/or population.

Yes

5. Serve the number of individuals
that have been agreed upon.
6. Achieve the outcomes that have
been agreed upon.
7. Quality Assurance

Yes

8. Ensure protection of confidentiality
of protected health information.

Yes

9. Staffing sufficient for the program

Yes

10. Annual independent fiscal audit

Yes

11. Fiscal resources sufficient to
deliver and sustain the services

Yes

12. Oversight sufficient to comply with
generally accepted accounting
principles
13. Documentation sufficient to
support invoices

Yes

14. Documentation sufficient to
support allowable expenditures

Yes

Method of accounting for
personnel time and
operating costs appear to
be supported.

15. Documentation sufficient to
support expenditures invoiced in
appropriate fiscal year

Yes

No billings noted for
previous fiscal year
expenses.

16. Administrative costs sufficiently

Yes

All Indirect charged to

Yes
Yes

Yes
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justified and appropriate to the
total cost of the program
17. Insurance policies sufficient to
comply with contract
18. Effective communication between
contract manager and contractor
VII.

Review Results.

program costs.
Yes
Yes

Necessary insurance is in
place.
Regular contact between
manager and contractor.

The review covered the following areas:

1. Deliver services according to the values of the Mental Health Services Act
(California Code of Regulations Section 3320 – MHSA General Standards).
Does the program/plan element collaborate with the community, provide an
integrated service experience, promote wellness, recovery and resilience, be
culturally competent, and be client and family driven?
Method. Participant and service provider interviews, and consumer surveys.
The following table summarizes the survey results:
Questions
Responses: 22
Please indicate how
strongly you agree or
Strongly Agree Disagree Strongly I
disagree with the following
Agree
Disagree Don’t
statements regarding
Know
persons who work with you:
(Options: strongly agree,
4
3
2
1
0
agree, disagree, strongly
disagree, I don’t know)
Average score: 3.54 (n=22)
1. Help me improve my
health and wellness
“n” denotes the number of respondents who
scored the item between 1 and 4. The remainder
of respondents either did not score or scored “I
don’t know.”
Average score: 3.52 (n=21)
2. Allow me to decide my
own strengths and
needs.
Average score: 3.45 (n=22)
3. Work with me to
determine the services
that are most helpful.
Average score: 3.33 (n=21)
4. Provide services that
are sensitive to my
cultural background.
Average score: 3.77 (n=22)
5. Provide services that
are in my preferred
language.
Average score: 3.35 (n=20)
6. Help me in getting
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needed health,
employment, education
and other benefits and
services.
Average score: 3.38 (n=21)
7. Are open to my
opinions as to how
services should be
provided.
8. What does this program Answers included the following statements:
do well?
• Always makes me feel welcome
• Family development resource for being a
better parent
• I can bring my child and we can come
together as a family. Subject matter is
informative and they help us become better
parents
• Respect
• Confidence in talking more about the subject
• How a child’s brain develops and how abuse
affects children and their brain development
• They allow me to concentrate in class
because they provide childcare
• The people who are well trained on the
subject matter
• I like the easy and practical way the lessons
are explained, the examples are simple,
practical and easy to implement with children,
and for families to follow the examples to raise
their family based on love
• Everything – how to be better parents,
understand our children, share different
perspectives, good advice is given, program is
easy to follow and understand, teachers are
great
9. What does this program Answers included the following statements:
need to improve upon? • More variety of classes throughout the year
• There is not much publicity about the program
• Many families do not want to be in the
program for five months
• For me, everything was perfect
• Revise and update the book/materials
• I think everything is very good, and the people
who instruct the workshop are very
professional
10. What needed services
Answers included the following statements:
5

and supports are
missing?

•
•
•

More variety of classes throughout the year
There is not much publicity about the program
Many families do not want to be in the
program for five months
• For me, everything was perfect
• Revise and update the book/materials
• I think everything is very good, and the people
who instruct the workshop are very
professional
Very
Important Somewhat Not
Important
Important Important
4
3
2
1
Average score: 3.5 (n=33)

11. How important is this
program in helping you
improve your health
and wellness, live a
self-directed life, and
reach your full potential.
(Options: very
important, important,
somewhat important,
not important)
12. Any additional
Answers included the following statements:
comments?
• This program helps us become better parents
and give our children respect
• Thank you for providing the resources for us
parents to continue to improve on the beautiful
mission of parenting and nurturing
• Awesome program, can’t wait to finish and
see what I will learn for the betterment of
myself and my family
Discussion. Staff and participants both noted that a higher number of couples
are enrolling in the parenting classes. They expressed that having an
opportunity to attend the class with their partner was an invaluable experience.
The fact that child care and dinner for the whole family are provided makes the
class much more accessible for families, as noted in many of the comments
made by participants. The classes are offered using multimodal teaching
strategies (including exercises and role plays), as well as being culturally
appropriate and inclusive. The material is presented in a way that parents are
able to easily understand and find value in. Participants are able to learn
transformative skills that improve family functioning, as well as develop social
connections with peers.
Results. Interviews were conducted with three program participants who
recently completed the Nurturing Parenting classes, one program facilitator, and
one program supervisor. A twelve question survey was given to consumers prior
to the site visit. Survey questions provided the opportunity to rate the program
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on MHSA general standards and the importance of the program for the
participants, as well as to answer open ended questions. Twenty-two surveys
were completed.
2. Serve the agreed upon target population. As a Prevention and Early
Intervention funded program, does the CAPC/Nurturing Parenting program
prevent the development of a serious mental illness or serious emotional
disturbance, and help reduce disparities in services? Does the program serve
the agreed upon target population of parents of underserved Hispanic
communities?
Method. Compare the program description and/or service work plan with a
random sampling of client charts or case files.
Discussion. Services are provided to parents who are referred by agencies
such as First Five, Head Start and WIC. Participation in the Nurturing Parenting
Program is voluntary. MHSA funded classes in East and Central County are
conducted in Spanish, to meet the needs of participants. The program employs
bi-lingual / bi-cultural staff to facilitate the Nurturing Parenting Classes.
Results. The program serves the agreed upon target population by providing
free parenting classes at two locations. Classes are conducted in a culturally
appropriate manner that is inclusive of the whole family.
3. Provide the services for which funding was allocated. Does the program
provide the number and type of services that have been agreed upon?
Method. Compare the service work plan or program service goals with regular
reports and match with case file reviews and client/family member and service
provider interviews.
Discussion. Monthly service summaries as well as semi-annual and annual
reports show that the program has consistently provided four 22-week Nurturing
Parenting classes per year in East and Central County since the contract was
created in 2009. The program offers Nurturing Parenting classes in 13 locations.
Two are funded by MHSA.
Results. MHSA funds that are directed to the agency cover expenditures
associated with supporting the provision of the four Nurturing Parenting classes
in East and Central County. The program is providing the services that have
been agreed upon.
4. Meet the needs of the community and/or population. Is the program meeting
the needs of the population/community for which it was designed? Has the
program been authorized by the Board of Supervisors as a result of a community
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program planning process? Is the program consistent with the MHSA Three
Year Program and Expenditure Plan?
Method. Research the authorization and inception of the program for adherence
to the Community Program Planning Process. Match the service work plan or
program description with the Three Year Plan. Compare with consumer/family
member and service provider interviews. Review client surveys.
Discussion. This program was included in the original PEI plan that was
approved in May 2009 and included in subsequent plan updates. The program
has been authorized by the Board of Supervisors and is consistent with the
current MHSA Three-Year Program and Expenditure Plan as well as the PEI
regulations on prevention programs, and the goals of improving timely access to
mental health services for underserved populations, specifically Spanish
speaking families in East and Central County. Interviews with service providers
and program participants support the notion that the program meets its goals and
the needs of the community it serves. Two key program staff are current or
former CCBHS employees, so they are well versed in recognizing signs of
mental illness and know how to connect clients to county mental health clinics or
other resources, should the need arise. The program employs a Spanishspeaking psychologist, Dr. Hector Rivera-Lopez, on a contract basis. He gives
presentations to each class approximately once a month, or as appropriate.
These are intended to reduce stigma around mental health, as well as educate
families about how to access care.
Results. The program meets the needs of the community and the population
for which is was designated.
5. Serve the number of individuals that have been agreed upon. Has the
program been serving the number of individuals specified in the program
description/service work plan, and how has the number served been trending the
last three years?
Method. Match program description/service work plan with history of monthly
reports and verify with supporting documentation, such as logs, sign-in sheets
and case files.
Discussion. The Service Work Plan indicates that the program will serve 60
parents and children. During the 16-17 year, the program served 31 parents and
29 children, thus meeting their goal. However, they did encounter a new
challenge around enrollment. Their annual report indicates that “parents are
afraid to access services in the community” due to the political climate that has
developed since the last presidential election. Staff is having to work harder to
identify mental health resources for the families they serve, due to increased
levels of anxiety and fear. In addition, enrollment in the Brentwood location has
been tapering due to participants not being able to afford to live in this area and
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public transportation being limited. As a result, the program will be attempting to
re-locate this class to Oakley, where it will be more accessible.
Results. The program is the serving the number of individuals that have been
agreed upon.
6. Achieve the outcomes that have been agreed upon. Is the program meeting
the agreed upon outcome goals, and how has the outcomes been trending?
Method. Match outcomes reported for the last three years with outcomes
projected in the program description/service work plan, and verify validity of
outcome with supporting documentation, such as case files or charts.
Discussion. The program identifies the following five outcome indicators: 1)
Appropriate Expectations of Children; 2) Empathy, 3) Non-Violent Discipline; 4)
Self-Awareness; and 5) Empowerment. Results of the pre- and post-tests given
to participants indicate consistent trending in a positive direction and
enhancement of these five protective factors to replace risk of abuse behavior
with positive parenting skills.
Results. The program achieves the agreed upon outcomes.
7. Quality Assurance. How does the program assure quality of service provision?
Method. Review and report on results of participation in County’s utilization
review, quality management incidence reporting, and other appropriate means of
quality of service review.
Discussion. Contra Costa County did not receive any grievances toward the
program during the last three years.
Results. The program established an internal grievance process during the last
program review.
8. Ensure protection of confidentiality of protected health information. What
protocols are in place to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Assurance (HIPAA) Act, and how well does staff comply with the
protocol?
Method. Match the HIPAA Business Associate service contract attachment with
the observed implementation of the program/plan element’s implementation of a
protocol for safeguarding protected patient health information.
Discussion. The program has established practices to ensure the privacy of
client information. As a provider of free, voluntary parent education classes, they
do not transmit or receive electronic data associated with the provision of health
care services. Staff indicated that they review the policies around confidentiality
as well as mandated reporting, with participants at the beginning of each new
series of classes. Staff also indicated that they have safeguards for keeping
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records secure, such as using a password protected database for pre- and posttest data. Only authorized personnel have access to confidential information.
Results. The program is in compliance with HIPAA regulations.
9. Staffing sufficient for the program. Is there sufficient dedicated staff to deliver
the services, evaluate the program for sufficiency of outcomes and continuous
quality improvement, and provide sufficient administrative support?
Method. Match history of program response with organization chart, staff
interviews and duty statements.
Discussion. The program employs the following part-time staff to facilitate the
Nurturing Parenting classes in East and Central County: 2 parent educators, 3
child care providers, and one supervisor. In addition, the program employs a
Spanish speaking child psychologist, Dr. Hector Rivera-Lopez, who gives
presentations to each class and is available for consultation, on a contract basis.
Results: Staffing is adequate to administer four 22-week classes per year.
10. Annual independent fiscal audit. Did the organization have an annual
independent fiscal audit performed and did the independent auditors issue any
findings?
Method. Obtain and review audited financial statements. If applicable, discuss
any findings or concerns identified by auditors with fiscal manager. Discussion.
The Child Abuse Prevention Council of Contra Costa County, Inc.,(CAPC), is a
non-profit corporation incorporated under the laws of California in 1984. CAPC
provides services to parents and their children through an evidence-based
curriculum of cultural, linguistic, and developmentally appropriate parent
education. CAPC’s purpose is to promote the safety of children and prevent child
abuse and neglect in Contra Costa County.
Results. Annual independent fiscal audits for FY 2013-14, 14-15 and 15-16 were
provided and reviewed. No material or significant findings were noted.
11. Fiscal resources sufficient to deliver and sustain the services. Does
organization have diversified revenue sources, adequate cash flow, sufficient
coverage of liabilities, and qualified fiscal management to sustain program or
plan element?
Method. Review audited financial statements and Board of Directors meeting
minutes. Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. There were no issues identified in the Board of Director’s minutes
related to the program or organization’s fiscal position. Their operating cash
balance appears to be sufficient, and they have a daily process to track cash
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flows. The organization is conservative with no line of credit, and they indicate
that they have a reserve account with an equity ratio of 30%.
Results. Fiscal resources appear to be sufficient to deliver and sustain services.
12. Oversight sufficient to comply with generally accepted accounting
principles. Does organization have appropriate qualified staff and internal
controls to assure compliance with generally accepted accounting principles?
Method. Interview with fiscal manager.
Discussion. The Chief Financial Officer, Wilma Holgerson, and Accounting
Manager, Lisa Heinrich, were interviewed. Wilma is a licensed CPA and has a
background in non-profit accounting. She trained Lisa on payroll and monthly
demand procedures. Both maintain that there is a segregation of financial duties
and are cross trained on these various responsibilities. The organization uses
QuickBooks software program to track personnel time recordings and
aggregation to enable accurate summaries for billings and payments.
Results. Sufficient oversight exists to enable compliance with generally accepted
accounting principles.
13. Documentation sufficient to support invoices. Do the organization’s financial
reports support monthly invoices charged to the program and ensure no
duplicate billing?
Method. Reconcile financial system with monthly invoices. Interview fiscal
manager of program.
Discussion. A randomly selected invoice for each of the last three years was
matched with supporting documentation provided by the agency. A clear and
accurate connection was established between documented hours worked and
invoices.
Results. Uses established software program with appropriate supporting
documentation protocol to ensure no duplicate billing occurs.
14. Documentation sufficient to support allowable expenditures. Does
organization have sufficient supporting documentation (payroll records and
timecards, receipts, allocation bases/statistics) to support program personnel and
operating expenditures charged to the program?
Method. Match random sample of one month of supporting documentation for
each fiscal year (up to three years) for identification of personnel costs and
operating expenditures invoiced to the county.
Discussion. Personnel costs reflect staff time based on total amount of allocated
hours worked for each program. The accounting system and spreadsheets used
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by the program and the associated supporting documentation ensure expenses
are tracked and reported appropriately.
Results. Method of allocation of percentage of personnel time and operating
costs appear to be sufficient to support allowable expenses.
15. Documentation sufficient to support expenditures invoiced in appropriate
fiscal year. Do organization’s financial system year end closing entries support
expenditures invoiced in appropriate fiscal year (i.e., fiscal year in which
expenditures were incurred regardless of when cash flows)?
Method. Reconcile year end closing entries in financial system with invoices.
Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. The program maintains accounting policies on how to treat month
and year end transactions.
Results. CAPC appears to be implementing an appropriate year end closing
system.
16. Administrative costs sufficiently justified and appropriate to the total cost
of the program. Is the organization’s allocation of administrative/indirect costs
to the program commensurate with the benefit received by the program?
Method. Review methodology and statistics used to allocate
administrative/indirect costs. Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. CAPS produced its methodology that justifies the 15% indirect rate
charged to the contract. The controller indicated indirect costs are allocated to
the different programs based on actual personnel hours associated to each
program.
Results. At 15% the indirect rate appears justified and reasonable.
17. Insurance policies sufficient to comply with contract. Does the organization
have insurance policies in effect that are consistent with the requirements of the
contract?
Method. Review insurance policies.
Discussion. The program provided valid proof of insurance covering
automotive, general and professional liability, and property coverage.
Results. The program is in compliance with insurance requirements.
18. Effective communication between contract manager and contractor. Do
both the contract manager and contractor staff communicate routinely and clearly
regarding program activities, and any program or fiscal issues as they arise?
Method. Interview contract manager and contractor staff.
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Discussion. The program has been submitting invoices, cost reports, and
monthly and semi-annual service reports in a timely fashion. Program staff and
contract manager meet on an as needed basis to discuss concerns and issues
as they may arise. Program staff participates in quarterly PEI provider meetings.
Results. The program has good communication with the contract manager and
is willing to address any issues as they may arise.

VIII.

Summary of Results.
Child Abuse Prevention Council (CAPC) is a well-run organization with the clear
focus on reducing the incidence of child abuse in Contra Costa County by
providing parent education and other family supports. The program adheres to
the principles of MHSA by providing culturally and linguistically appropriate
services to underserved communities. Services are aimed at reducing risk factors
for developing serious emotional disturbance and mental illness by increasing
family bonds and family functioning, and reducing the risk of child maltreatment
through non-stigmatizing evidenced based parenting classes. Consumers
overwhelmingly endorsed the positive impact of the Nurturing Parenting Program
on their families and the wider community. Staff running the classes are all
experienced, long-time employees who are passionate about their work. The
fiscal administration of the program and revenue sources are all sound.

IX.

Findings for Further Attention.
Due to decreasing enrollment in the Brentwood location, the program will be relocating this class in the upcoming year, to create greater accessibility for
participants.

X.

Next Review Date. 2020

XI.

Appendices.

Appendix A – Program Description/Service Work Plan
Appendix B – Service Provider Budget
Appendix C – Yearly External Fiscal Audit
Appendix D – Organization Chart
XII.

Working Documents that Support Findings.

Consumer Listing
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Consumer, Family Member Surveys
Consumer, Family Member, Provider Interviews
County MHSA Monthly Financial Report
Progress Reports, Outcomes
Monthly Invoices with Supporting Documentation (Contractor)
Indirect Cost Allocation Methodology/Plan (Contractor)
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes (Contractor)
Insurance Policies (Contractor)
MHSA Three Year Plan and Update(s)
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Appendix A

SERVICE WORK PLAN
Agency: The Child Abuse Prevention Council of Contra Costa
Name of Project: The Nurturing Parenting Program
Fiscal Year: July 2017- June 2018
I.

Scope of Services
The Child Abuse Prevention Council of Contra Costa will provide an evidence-based curriculum of
culturally, linguistically, and developmentally appropriate, Spanish speaking families in East County, and
Central County’s Monument Corridor. Four classes will be provided for 15 parents each session and
approximately 15 children each session 0-12 years of age. The 22 week curriculum will immerse parents
in ongoing training, free of charge, designed to build new skills and alter old behavioral patterns intended
to strengthen families and support the healthy development of their children in their own neighborhoods.
The dates of the four classes are:
East County – July 2017-December 2017
East County- Jan 2018- June 2018
Central – July 2017 –Dec 2017
Central – Jan 2018- June 2018

II.

Types of Mental Health Services/Other Service-Related Activities
During the term of this contract, the Child Abuse Prevention Council of Contra Costa will assist Contra
Costa Behavioral Health Services (CCBHS) in implementing the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA),
by providing Prevention and Early Intervention services to support healthy parenting skills. Nurturing
Parenting staff will be provided with additional training in the Nurturing Parenting curriculum as well as
in trauma informed practices. In addition, Dr. Hector Rivera-Lopez will facilitate two 1.5 parent group
presentations per session at each site. Dr. Rivera will educate, raise mental health awareness and will
offer guidance to parents to help identify early signs of mental health illness or behavioral challenges.
Dr. Rivera will offer support and education to parents in understanding mental health illness to help
decrease stigma of accessing mental health services. Dr. Rivera-Lopez will evaluate and assess
individuals who may struggle with identifying or accepting mental health needs. Dr. Rivera-Lopez will
collaborate with the CAPC supervisor to link and refer participants interested in receiving
mental/behavioral health support. In addition to presentations Dr. Rivera-Lopez will be available to
parents and their children to provide individual sessions to best support and provide linkage to
resources in the community that will meet their needs. Dr. Hector Rivera-Lopez has 30+ years of
experience offering mental health services to the Latino community, and is a most respected
professional within the Latino community.

III.

Program Facilities/Hours of Operation /Staffing
A. Program Facilities Location
2120 Diamond Blvd. # 120
Concord, CA 94520
Services will be provided at the following off-site locations:
• Brentwood First Five Center 760 First Street, Brentwood, 94513
• Monument Community First 5, 1736 Clayton Rd., Concord 94520
B. Contact Person, Phone Number, and Email
Carol Carrillo, MSW, Executive Director
925-798-0546 capccarol@gmail.com
C. Program Hours of Operation
The Child Abuse Prevention Council of Contra Costa will provide services between the hours of 9:00
a.m.–5:00 p.m., Monday thru Friday with some scheduled evening and weekend hours.
D. Program Staffing (including staffing pattern)
Initials: ______ ______
County / Contractor

SERVICE WORK PLAN
Agency: The Child Abuse Prevention Council of Contra Costa
Name of Project: The Nurturing Parenting Program
Fiscal Year: July 2017- June 2018

Number:

Contractor will employ a minimum of 1.175 FTE to provide direct services.
IV.

Volume of Services to be Provided
Contractor will provide services to 60 unduplicated parents and approximately 60 unduplicated children
participants on an annual basis. Contractor shall attach to the billing a Monthly Contract Service
/Expenditure Summary (Form: MHP029) with the total number of services provided for the month and
the additional unduplicated (for the year) number of clients served during the month.

V.

Billing Procedure
Contractor shall submit a Demand for Payment (Form: D15.19) for services rendered to Contra Costa
Mental Health. Contractor shall attach to the billing a Monthly Contract Service/Expenditure Summary
(Form: MHP029) with actual expenditure information for the billing period.
Demands for payment should be submitted by mail to:

Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services
1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 200
Martinez, CA 94553
Telephone: (925) 957-5118
Fax: (925) 957-5156
VI.

Outcome Statements
A. Increase in positive parenting skills in the following five areas:
1. Appropriate expectations of children
2. Increase in empathy
3. Reduction in physical punishment
4. Reducing role reversal
5. Understanding appropriate developmental power and independence
B. Increase in competence and confidence in parenting for each parent in attendance.
C. Protective factors are well established for parents upon graduation from the program.

VII.

VIII.

Measures of Success
Contractor will track the following MHSA outcome measures:
A. The average group score on four out of five targeted parenting constructs will show improvement
between pre- and post- test on the AAPI.
B. 80% of total instruction hours to parents and children (3,225 hours) in East County
C. 80% of total instruction hours to parents and children (3,300 hours) in Central County.
D. The year-end report will include a summary report on referrals of ‘at risk’ individuals in need for
further mental health supports to clinical and other mental health supports.
Measurement/Evaluation Tools
Contractor will provide documentation of measure outcomes using the following tools:
Initials: ______ ______
County / Contractor

SERVICE WORK PLAN
Agency: The Child Abuse Prevention Council of Contra Costa
Name of Project: The Nurturing Parenting Program
Fiscal Year: July 2017- June 2018

Number:

A. Evidence-based AAPI pre- and post- test administered to parents during the first weeks of the class
and again during the last weeks of the class; used to determine an increase in parenting skills. The test
is comprised of 40 questions designed to measure the risk factors that have been addressed in the
course of the curriculum:
1. Nurturing and attachment
2. Knowledge of parent and child development
3. Parental resilience
4. Social connections
5. Support for parents
IX.

Reports Required
Contractor is asked to complete and submit semi-annual reports on 02/15/2018 and 08/15/2018 to
document the program’s services and progress, track statistical information (i.e. age, gender, ethnicity,
language, and client residence) of the target population(s) actually served, and report on outcomes as
defined by the Contractor and approved by the County during contract award and negotiation process.
Please submit all evaluation reports via email to:

Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services
1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 200
Martinez, CA 94553
Telephone: (925) 957-5118
Fax: (925) 957-5156

X.

Other
Promotional materials for the program should identify the funding source: “Funded by the Mental Health
Services Act in partnership with Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services”. Contractor must attend the
Regional Roundtable meetings sponsored by Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services.

Initials: ______ ______
County / Contractor

Appenix B - Service Provider Budget

CONTRA COSTA MENTAL HEALTH -- MHSA -- Prevention & Early Intervention
Budget Worksheet -- 7/1/2017 - 6/30/2021
Project: Empowerment -- LGBTQ Youth Develpoment in East County
Applicant Name:

Date:

CENTER FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT

12/9/2016

Total Year 1 Request:

$81,649

Total Year 2 Request:

$83,916

Total Year 3 Request:

$86,079

Note: Any funds going to a collaborating agency must be clearly identified in Budget Narrative
Previous
Year MHSA
Budget
A. Expenditures
1. Staffing
0.075 Existing
- Existing
1.00 Existing
0.100 TBD

Employee Benefits

Program Director (ED)
Site Director
Program Coordinator II
Program Assistant
Subtotal

1,975
4,484
23,762
500
30,222

25% of salary costs

Total Personnel Expenditures (Salaries plus Benefits)
Other Personnel Costs
a.
Consultant - clinical supervison
b.
Consultant - focus group facilitation/evaluation
c.
Stipends for youth leaders
Total Other Personnel Costs
3. Operating Expenditures
a. Travel and Transportation
b. General Office Expenditures - including postage
c. Facility rental & maintenance
d. Communications Expense - phone, fax, internet
e. Other Operating Expenses
Printing/Copying
Program expenses - outreach, food, beverages, incentives
Conferences/Staff Development
Audit
Insurance
Payroll Processing
Total Operating Expenditures
4. Administrative Costs
a. Overhead
15%

YEAR 1
2017-2018
Budget

6,096
35,643
2,808
44,547

YEAR 2
2018-2019
Budget

6,279
36,712
2,892
45,883

YEAR 3
2020-2021
Budget

6,467
37,814
2,979
47,260

6,044

11,137

11,471

11,815

$36,266

$55,684

$57,354

$59,075

500
500
800
1,800

500
500
1,250
2,250

500
600
1,250
2,350

500
600
1,200
2,300

2,400
330
2,400
1,000

2699
330
3,744
1,000

2699
340
3,931
1,000

2699
350
4,128
1,000

200
2,800
250
930
180
110
$10,600

500
2,800
250
1,395
234
113
$13,065

500
2,800
250
1,395
234
117
$13,266

500
2,800
250
1,395
234
120
$13,476

$4,869

$10,650

$10,946

$11,228

Total Proposed Budget

$53,535

$81,649

$83,916

$86,079

B. Other Revenue (estimated)
a. Medi-Cal
b. Other: Donations
c. Other: Grant Funding
d. Total Other Revenue

0
1,000
5,000
$6,000

0
1,000
2,500
$3,500

0
1,000
2,500
$3,500

0
1,000
2,500
$3,500

$53,560

$81,649

$83,916

$86,079

Estimated Value
$2,000
$2,000
$1,515
$1,515
$3,515
$3,515

$2,000
$1,515
$3,515

C. Total MHSA Operational Funds Requested

In-Kind Applied to Project
Describe
Meeting space at various community sites
Unfunded share of cost for Program Assistant
Total In-Kind

$2,000
1,515
$3,515
Total

$63,050

$88,664

$90,930

$93,093

ED will assume responsibilities of Site Director
This role discontinued
Includes 5% incr Year I for existing staff to work more independently
Share of cost for administrative support

Share of cost incr to $60 per hr in year 2
Stipendes for 2 peer leaders @ $600 per yr.

Assume $220.75 per mo.+ $50
Assume .03% incr per yr.
2 FTE per 120 sq. ft. @ 1.30 sq. ft., assuming .5 incr per yr.
Assume facility move IT cost
Colateral materials for outreach per expanded activites

Increase 50% per 2 FTE
Adjust 30%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
Child Abuse Prevention Council
of Contra Costa County, Inc.
Concord, California
We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of the Child Abuse Prevention
Council of Contra Costa County, Inc., as of June 30, 2016, with summarized financial information as
of June 30, 2016, and the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.
We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
1

Board of Directors
Child Abuse Prevention Council
of Contra Costa County, Inc.
Concord, California
Opinion
In our opinion, the combining financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Child Abuse Prevention Council of Contra Costa County, Inc.,
as of June 30, 2016, and changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Fechter & Company,
Certified Public Accountants

Sacramento, California
November 16, 2016
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CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION COUNCIL
OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016
(With Summarized Financial Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

ASSETS

UNRESTRICTED

TEMPORARILY
RESTRICTED

$

$

TOTAL
2016

SUMMARIZED
TOTAL
2015

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4 & 5)
Accounts and grants receivable (Note 6)
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

598,321

Furniture and Equipment, net (Note 7)
Deposits
TOTAL ASSETS

274,564
295,046
28,711

601,825

$

10,475

1,711
1,793
$

10,475
-

$

10,475

$

274,564
295,046
10,475
28,711

$

381,571
208,038
9,413
3,424

608,796

602,446

1,711
1,793

3,030
6,496

612,300

$

611,972

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued earned time off (Note 2)
Deferred revenue (Note 8)
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$

41,972
48,772
4,310

-

41,972
48,772
4,310

8,141
37,052
60,437

95,054

-

95,054

105,630

506,771
-

10,475

506,771
10,475

496,929
9,413

506,771

10,475

517,246

506,342

601,825

$

10,475

$

612,300

3
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$

611,972

CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION COUNCIL
OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2016
(With Summarized Financial Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

UNRESTRICTED

SUMMARIZED

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED

SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Fund
SUPPORT:
Corporations and foundations
Individuals
In-kind donations
Fundraising

$

Baby Bags

121,000
35,933
24,164
72,323

$

253,420

TOTAL SUPPORT

-

Community
Education
$

-

350
-

Parent Partner

Nurturing Parent
Center Based

Nurturing
Parenting Connection

Child
Safety Awareness

TOTAL
TEMPORARILY
RESTRICTED

$

$

$

$

$

350

-

20,000
-

36,000
5,677
-

10,000
-

66,000
6,027
-

TOTAL
2016
$

187,000
41,960
24,164
72,323

TOTAL
2015
$

157,951
57,149
57,871
132,384

20,000

41,677

10,000

72,027

325,447

405,355

REVENUE:
Government contracts
Program service revenue
Rental income
Interest income

6,000
1,426

124,256
-

55,200
-

686,624
-

186,828
-

5,000
-

276,191
-

1,057,908
276,191
-

1,057,908
276,191
6,000
1,426

1,074,998
2,000
1,113

TOTAL REVENUE

7,426

124,256

55,200

686,624

186,828

5,000

276,191

1,334,099

1,341,525

1,078,111

(123,194)

(55,550)

(686,624)

(206,828)

(46,677)

(286,191)

(1,405,064)

Net Assets Released From Restrictions

1,405,064

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

1,665,910

1,062

-

-

-

-

-

1,062

1,666,972

1,483,466

1,279,153
215,892
161,019

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,279,153
215,892
161,019

1,111,293
167,615
194,566

1,656,064

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,656,064

1,473,474

-

-

EXPENSES
Program services
Management and general
Fundraising
TOTAL EXPENSES
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

$

9,846

$

1,062

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

4
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-

$

1,062

$

10,908

$

9,992

CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION COUNCIL
OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
JUNE 30, 2016
(With Summarized Financial Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

UNRESTRICTED

TEMPORARILY
RESTRICTED

$

$

TOTAL
2015

TOTAL
2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Changes in Net Assets
Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets
to cash (used) by operating activities
Depreciation
CHANGES IN CURRENT ASSETS AND
CURRENT LIABILITIES
(Increase) decrease in accounts and contracts
receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
(Increase) decrease in inventory
(Increase) decrease in deposits
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued vacation
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue
NET CASH (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Equipment purchases
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

1,062

$

10,908

$

9,992

1,319

-

1,319

1,319

(87,012)
(25,287)
4,703
33,831
11,720
(56,127)

(1,062)
-

(87,012)
(25,287)
(1,062)
4,703
33,831
11,720
(56,127)

(40,614)
13,180
(1,653)
4,621
(32,305)
2,678
3,098

(118,172)

(1,062)

(119,234)

(50,995)

-

-

-

(2,190)

-

-

(2,190)

.
-

NET (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
end of year

9,846

$

(118,172)

(1,062)

(119,234)

(12,236)

381,571

-

381,571

393,807

263,399

$

(1,062)

$

5
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262,337

$

381,571

CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION COUNCIL
OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
JUNE 30, 2016
(With Summarized Financial Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Baby
Bags
PERSONNEL
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Contract services

$

$

39,022

TOTAL PERSONNEL

420
40
56,480
8,413
76
757
2,091
324
8
57
56
197

Staff development
Staff mileage expense
Special needs
Education resources
Community service
Public relations/marketing
Occupancy
Insurance
Telephone
Office expense
Postage
Printing
Conferences
Dues, fees, & subscriptions
Equipment & equipment repair
Board expenses
In-kind volunteer services
Depreciation
Fundraising expense
Miscellaneous
TOTAL EXPENSES

36,327
3,321
(626)
-

Community
Education

$

107,941

$

Parent
Partner

59,267
4,986
920

$

504,285
43,538
11,160

Nurturing
Parenting
Center
Based
$ 108,086
11,676
3,220

Nurturing
Parenting
Connection
$

60,882
5,861
949

Child
Safety
Awareness
$

155,357
14,411
2,346

SUPPORT
TOTAL
PROGRAMS
$

924,205
83,793
17,969
-

65,173

558,983

122,982

67,692

172,114

161
1,834
1,734
4,206
124
378
144
22
1
331
4
4
184

4,260
41,156
1,058
1,523

362
303
48,394
4,206
233
378
1,802
279
7
49
48
411

53
5,900
5,677
1,168
2,103
128
309
262
40
22
7
7
196

338
145
45,197
2,103
853
185
1,678
266
6
45
2,248
541

5,594
49,378
5,677
104,579
48,394
21,031
2,472
2,007
5,977
931
44
331
162
2,363
3,052

606,980

$ 179,454

225,719

$ 1,277,958

74,300

$

$

83,564

$

Administration
$

1,025,966

$

155,750
12,937
2,060
9,354

Fundraising
$

91,245
7,666
1,190
675

TOTAL
SUPPORT
$

246,995
20,603
3,250
10,029

180,101

100,776

280,877

673
1,378
3,528
16,825
2,076
1,514
1,453
132
3
170
989
5,234
1,319
497

474
158
52
4,206
190
378
1,977
847
7
53
51
24,164
27,224
462

215,892

$

6
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161,019

$

TOTAL
2016
$ 1,171,200
104,396
21,219
10,029

SUMMARIZED
TOTAL
2015
$

985,910
85,823
7,663
12,881

1,306,843

1,092,277

1,147
1,536
52
3,528
21,031
2,266
1,892
3,430
979
10
223
1,040
5,234
24,164
1,319
27,224
959

6,741
50,914
5,677
104,631
48,394
3,528
42,062
4,738
3,899
9,407
1,910
54
331
385
3,403
5,234
24,164
1,319
27,224
4,011

1,265
58,048
4,704
70,972
52,919
8,891
45,060
5,115
3,669
9,282
1,119
658
516
800
5,326
6,250
57,871
1,319
44,280
3,130

376,911

$ 1,654,869

$

1,473,471

CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION COUNCIL
OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION
The Child Abuse Prevention Council of Contra Costa County, Inc., (CAPC), is a nonprofit corporation incorporated under the laws of California in 1984. CAPC’s purpose is
to promote the safety of children and prevent child abuse and neglect in Contra Costa
County by raising awareness, influencing public policy, educating our community, and
providing resources.
CAPC’s programs are primarily funded through grants under contractual agreement
with local governments. CAPC implemented a program called Childhelp Speak Up Be
Safe (SUBS), a fee for service program providing a school-based program that teaches
1st – 6th grade students skills to help prevent and interrupt child abuse - physical,
emotional, sexual and neglect, as well as sexual harassment, bullying, and cyberbullying.
NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Accounting and Reporting – The Organization maintains its accounting records
on the accrual basis of accounting.
Use of Estimates – In preparing combining financial statements in conformity with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, management must make estimates based on
future events that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities; the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements; and revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents – The Organization’s cash and cash equivalents balance
consists of amounts held in checking, savings, and certificate of deposit accounts in large
financial institutions.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments – Financial instruments consist of financial assets and
financial liabilities. The Organization’s financial assets are cash and cash equivalents and
accounts receivable. The Organization’s financial liabilities are accounts payable and
deferred revenue.
None of the financial instruments are held for trading. The fair value of these financial
instruments approximate the carrying amounts because the value of the short maturity of
these instruments. The fair value estimates have not been recorded or reported for
financial statement purposes because of the short term maturity of these financial
instruments and because the financial instruments are not held for trading.
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CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION COUNCIL
OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Prepaid Expenses – Prepaid expenses are amortized over the period of future benefit.
Inventory – Inventory consists of baby bags and informational materials and is recorded at
its original cost using the first in first out method of accounting.
Furniture and Equipment – Furniture and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for
furniture and equipment greater than $1,500 per unit are capitalized and depreciated over
five to ten years using the straight-line method. When assets are retired or sold, the
related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and gain or loss
arising from such disposition is included as income or expense. Expenditures for repairs
and maintenance are charged to expenses as incurred.
Donated Materials and Services – Donated materials are recorded at their fair value on the
date of donation. Donated services by individuals providing administration services are
not recorded as donated services as there are no special skills required for these services.
Accrued Earned Time Off - Accumulated unpaid employee Earned Time Off (ETO)
benefits are recognized as liabilities of the Organization. The liability is recognized in the
program to which the liability relates.
Functional Allocation of Expenses – Costs of providing the programs, administrative
duties and fundraising activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
accompanying statement of functional expenses. Certain indirect costs have been
allocated directly to programs and administration based upon ratios determined by
management. These costs primarily include salaries, fringe benefits, occupancy, and other
expenses.
Income Taxes – The Organization is a Section 501(c)(3) organization exempt from
income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and Section 23701(d)
of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. There was no taxable unrelated business
income during 2016.
The Organization has implemented the accounting requirements associated with
uncertainty in income taxes. The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued guidance
that clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an
Organization’s financial statements. Using that guidance, tax positions initially need to be
recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not the positions will be
sustained upon examination by the tax authorities.
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CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION COUNCIL
OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income Taxes - continued
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization has no uncertain tax positions that
qualify for either recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.
The Organization’s tax years for 2013 through 2016 remain open and could be subject to
examination by the federal tax jurisdiction. For the state tax jurisdiction, the tax years
2012 through 2016 remain open and could be subject to examination.
Contributions and Grant Revenue – The Organization receives contributions and grants
from corporations, foundations, charitable organizations, and individuals. Contributions
and grants are presented in accordance with presented Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 958, Not-For-Profit
Entities. ASC 958,605 Not-For-Profit Entities-Revenue Recognition.
The provisions of ASC 958,605 require the Organization to recognize contributions and
grants as either temporarily or permanently restricted support, if they are received with
donor stipulations that limit the use of the contribution or grant. When a temporary
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose of the
restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted
net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.
All other contributions are recognized upon receipt. Amounts received but not yet earned
are reported as deferred revenue.
Financial Statement Presentation
The Organization’s financial statements are presented in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic
958, Not-For-Profit Entities. Under FASB ASC Topic 958, the Organizations are required
to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three
classes of net assets based upon the existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions, as
follows:
Unrestricted Net Assets – represent resources over which the Board of Directors has
discretionary control and that are neither permanently restricted nor temporarily restricted
by donor-imposed stipulations.

9

CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION COUNCIL
OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets – represent resources whose use by the Organization
are limited by donor imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can be
fulfilled and removed by actions of the Organization pursuant to those stipulations.
When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated purpose is accomplished,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets. The
Organization’s temporarily restricted net assets consists of inventory temporarily
restricted for the Baby Bag program.
Permanently Restricted Net Assets – represent resources whose use by the Organization is
limited by donor imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of time nor can be
fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the Organization. The Organization has no
permanently restricted net assets.
Generally, the donor of these assets permits the recipient organization to unrestrictive use
of earnings from these assets to support the general operations of the recipient
organization. There were no permanently restricted net assets as of June 30, 2016.
Summarized Financial Information for 2015 – The financial information for the year
ended June 30, 2015, is presented for comparative purposes, and is not intended to be a
complete financial statement presentation.
Reclassifications – Certain reclassifications have been made in the 2015 comparative
totals to conform to the classifications used in 2016.
NOTE 3: CONCENTRATION OF RISK
This provision provides a framework for measuring fair value of certain financial
instruments under GAAP. It defines fair value as the exchange price that would be
received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most
advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date.
It requires that valuation techniques maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs. It also establishes a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes
the valuation inputs into three broad levels: a market approach, a cost approach, and an
income approach.
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CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION COUNCIL
OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 3: CONCENTRATION OF RISK (Continued)
The financial instruments, which potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of
credit risk, consist principally of cash and temporary cash investments.
The Organization place their temporary cash investments with high-credit, high quality
financial institutions, and by policy, limits the amount of credit exposure to any one
financial institution. The Organization maintains their operating cash accounts in one
financial institution and maintains its cash/money market accounts and certificate of
deposit accounts in another financial institution. The cash deposits maintained at each
financial institution is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to
$250,000. The operating cash account balance was below the federally insured limit at
June 30, 2016. The cash, money market and certificates of deposit balances were above
the federally insured limit as of June 30, 2016. The Organization believes no significant
concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these cash investments.
The Organization received significant amounts of revenue from governmental grants.
Should funding from these grants be changed due to a change in budgeting or due to
cutbacks, such reduction in funding might have an adverse effect on the Organization’s
programs and activities.
NOTE 4: FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements, defines fair value as the price that would be received
to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair
value. The standard describes the following three levels of inputs that may be used to
measure fair value:
Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.
Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar
assets; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets.
Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are

significant to the fair value of the assets. The following is a description of the valuation
methodologies used for assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis and recognized
in the accompanying statement of position, as well as the general classification of such
assets pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.
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CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION COUNCIL
OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 4: FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Investments - Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, investments

are classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Level 1 investment includes
money market funds and certificate of deposits. The Organization has no Level 2 or 3
investments.

The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the
accompanying statement of financial position measured at fair value on a recurring basis
and at the level within the ASC 820 fair value hierarchy in which the fair value
measurements fall at June 30, 2016:

Operating Cash
Auxiliary
Certificate of Deposits

Fair Value
$ 33,960
1,727
238,877

Totals

$

Fair Value Measurements Using
Level 1
Level 2
$ 33,960
$ -1,727
-238,877
--

274,564

$ 274,564

$ --

Level 3
$ ---$

--

NOTE 5: CASH HELD WITH OTHERS

CAPC functions as custodian for a cash account maintained by the Auxiliary. The
Auxiliary’s cash balances are segregated from the operating cash accounts of CAPC and
are restricted for the Auxiliary’s related activities. The amount of cash restricted for the
Auxilliary for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, was $1,726.
NOTE 6: ACCOUNTS AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts and grants receivable at June 30, 2016, represent funds earned but not yet
received from current contracts and grants as follows:
Contra Costa County Health Services
Contra Costa County
First 5 Contra Costa
Child Safety Programs
Family and Children’s Program
Other receivables
Total

$

23,556
181,021
7,424
58,051
7,786
17,208
$ 295,046

The Organization does not believe that an allowance for doubtful accounts is required for
any of the accounts and grants receivable as of June 30, 2016.
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CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION COUNCIL
OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 7: FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture and equipment consists of the following at June 30, 2016:
Equipment
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Total furniture and equipment
Less: Accumulated deprecation
Total

$

$

33,845
921
1,576
36,342
(34,631)
1,711

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2016, and June 30, 2015, was $1,319
and $1,319, respectively.
NOTE 8: DEFERRED REVENUE
Deferred revenue consists of the following at June 30, 2016:
Child Safety Program
Special Needs Funds
Total amount classified as temporarily restricted

$

4,200
110
4,310

NOTE 9: DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
CAPC has a defined contribution plan (the Plan) covering all employees who have
completed 90 days of service. Eligible employees may contribute any amount up to the
legal limit on a voluntary payroll deduction basis. The Organization does not make any
contributions to the Plan.
NOTE 10: PUBLIC RELATIONS/MARKETING COSTS
The Organization used advertising to promote its programs among the audiences it serves.
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended
June 30, 2016, and June 30, 2015, was $3,528 and $8,891, respectively.
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OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, INC.
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JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 11: COMMITMENTS
CAPC leases office space in Concord, California under an office lease agreement. The
terms of the office lease agreement start December 1, 2010, through March 30, 2017. The
monthly rent of $3,390 increased to $3,507 due on the first day of each month. CAPC
subleases an office to an unrelated party for under a sublease agreement for $500 a month.
CAPC is currently negotiating a five year lease extension.
Rent (including utilities) expense, for the years ended June 30, 2016, and June 30, 2015,
was $42,062, and $45,060, respectively.
On June 14, 2014, CAPC executed a two year lease agreement for a copier machine.
The lease agreement requires minimum lease payments of $196 per month.
Lease expense, for the years ended June 30, 2016, and June 30, 2015, was $1,800 and
$1,800, respectively.
Minimum future lease and rent payments are as follows:
Year ended June 30,
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

Amount
8,769
-----

NOTE 12: CONTINGENCIES
Grant awards require the fulfillment of certain conditions as set forth in the instruments of
the grant. Failure to fulfill the conditions could result in the return of the funds to the
grantors. The Organization deems this contingency remote since by accepting the grants
and their terms it has accommodated the objectives of the Organization to the provisions
of the grant. Management is of the opinion that the Organization has complied with the
terms of all grants.
NOTE 13: EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has reviewed the results of operations for the period of time from its
year end June 30, 2016, through November 16, 2016, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued and have determined that no adjustments are
necessary to the amounts reported in the accompanying financial statements nor have any
subsequent events occurred, the nature of which would require disclosure.
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ADDITIONAL REPORTS

INDEPDENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Child Abuse Prevention Council
of Contra Costa County, Inc.
Concord, California
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Child Abuse Prevention Council of Contra Costa County (a nonprofit organization) (the
Organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016, and the related
statement of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 16, 2016.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Board of Directors
Child Abuse Prevention Council
of Contra Costa County, Inc.
Concord, California
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.
Fechter & Company,
Certified Public Accountants

Sacramento, California
November 16, 2016
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